
CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting – Agenda 

March 20, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Pooler City Hall 100 
US Hwy 80 SW, 

Pooler, GA 31322 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

1 of 2 

I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM

II. CALL TO ORDER

III. INVOCATION

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 7, 2023

B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of March 7, 2023

C. Special Event Permit Application for Cavallo Equestrian Arts, LLC 
from March 31, 2023 through April 2, 2023

D. Special Event Permit Application for the Chamber of Commerce on 
April 21, 2023 (seeking waiver)

E. Special Event Permit Application for Robert Carpenter on May 6, 
2023

F. Special Event Permit Application for The 200 Club of the Coastal 
Empire on May 6, 2023 (seeking waiver)

G. Department Reports

1. Public Works

2. Finance

3. Fire

4. Police

5. Recreation

6. Planning & Zoning

VII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Site Plan for Element Hotel at 100 Davol Street

B. Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Performance Bond for Clear 
Lake Reserve Phase 2

Page 1 of 264



2 of 2 

C. Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis Courts Change Order #1 from 
Parker Properties

D. Amendment #1 to the 2023 Roadside Mowing and General 
Maintenance Contract with The McGraley Company, LLC

E. 2023 Surplus Property List

F. Fiscal Year 2023 Community Project Funding Grant Agreements 
B-23-CP-GA-0458, 0459, 0460, 0461

G. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocolate Bar at 1 N 
Godley Station Boulevard, Suite B-100

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

IX. ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 264



 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting – Minutes 

March 7, 2023 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 
 

 

1 of 5 

    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
  Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
John Wilcher, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager   
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council    

    
Absent:  

    
II. CALL TO ORDER 
  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
    
III. INVOCATION 
  Pastor Jennifer Thompson of Wesley Monumental United Methodist Church gave the 

invocation. 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  Pastor Jennifer Thompson led the pledge. 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  Mayor Rebecca Benton reminded all present of the 2023 Partner with Pooler to Plant a Tree 

for Free event happening this Saturday, March 7 from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at the Pooler 
Recreation Complex. 

    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
  

 

  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2023 

Page 3 of 264



 

2 of 5 

    
 

  B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 21, 2023 
     

Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve the consent agenda.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
  

 

  A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time (Second Reading) 
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the second reading for consideration. 

Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve the second reading of Ordinance 
O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-1) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS: Hutcherson 

    
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
  

 

  A. Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Boulevard (Public Hearing, 
Action) 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the variance for consideration. Dan Fischer was 
present on behalf of the petitioner and stated the detention pond would be surrounded 
by a fence. Mayor Rebecca opened and closed the public hearing without comment. 
Councilmember Karen Williams, after review of the criteria, moved to approve the 
Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Boulevard. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS: 

  B. Building Height Variance for a Proposed Hotel at 115 Towne Center Drive 
(Public Hearing, Action) 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the variance for consideration. Dan Fischer was 
present on behalf of the petitioner. Mayor Rebecca Benton opened and closed the 
public hearing without comment. Councilmember Aaron Higgins, after review of the 
criteria, moved to approve the Building Height Variance of 2.7" for the Proposed Hotel 
at 115 Towne Center Drive. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 

Page 4 of 264



 

3 of 5 

SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  C. Conditional Use Request for a Proposed Trailer Parking Yard on Jimmy 
DeLoach Parkway (Public Hearing, Action) 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the request for consideration. Scott Allison of 
Coleman Company was present on behalf of the petitioner. Mayor Rebecca Benton 
opened and closed the public hearing without comment. Councilmember Karen 
Williams, after review of the criteria, moved to approve the Conditional Use Request for 
a Proposed Trailer Parking Yard on Jimmy DeLoach Parkway. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  D. Site Plan for Savannah Quarters Office on Holmes Court 
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Justin Farmer was 

present on behalf of the petitioner. Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve 
the Site Plan for Savannah Quarters Office on Holmes Court subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. Recording of the stormwater agreement prior to the scheduling of a 
preconstruction meeting 

2. City Attorney approval 

 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  E. Site Plan for Pittman Subaru on Kita Avenue (Clear Lake Reserve) 
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Wesley Green of 

Coleman Company was present on behalf of the petitioner. Councilmember John 
Wilcher moved to approve the Site Plan for Pittman Subaru on Kita Avenue (Clear Lake 
Reserve) subject to the following conditions: 

1. Payment of $14,025.00 into the Tree Fund 
2. Recording of the stormwater agreement prior to the scheduling of a 

preconstruction meeting 
 

Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  F. Proposal for Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis and Pickleball Lighting System 
from Musco Lighting 

Page 5 of 264



 

4 of 5 

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the proposal for consideration. Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins moved to approve the Proposal for Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis 
and Pickleball Lighting System from Musco Lighting to be paid out Special Purpose 
Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) funds, not to exceed $312,818.00 and subject to City 
Attorney approval. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  With no further public business to conduct, Councilmember Stevie Wall moved to enter 

Executive Session. Council entered Executive Session at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
Mayor Rebecca C. Benton called the meeting back to order at 6:49 p.m.. 

    
X. ADJOURNMENT 
  Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:49 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ day of 
______________, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 
 

 

Page 6 of 264



 

5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 264



Page 8 of 264



Page 9 of 264



Page 10 of 264



Page 11 of 264



Page 12 of 264



Page 13 of 264



Page 14 of 264



Page 15 of 264



Page 16 of 264



Page 17 of 264



Page 18 of 264



Page 19 of 264



Page 20 of 264



Page 21 of 264



Page 22 of 264



Page 23 of 264



Page 24 of 264



Page 25 of 264



Page 26 of 264



Page 27 of 264



Page 28 of 264



Page 29 of 264



Page 30 of 264



Page 31 of 264



Page 32 of 264



Page 33 of 264



Page 34 of 264



Page 35 of 264



Page 36 of 264



Page 37 of 264



Page 38 of 264



Page 39 of 264



Page 40 of 264



Page 41 of 264



Page 42 of 264



Page 43 of 264



Page 44 of 264



Page 45 of 264



Page 46 of 264



Page 47 of 264



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matthew Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of February 2023 

Street: 

• Pull up Asphalt at Benton Blvd and replaced. 

• Pulled and Poured concrete on Durham Park Ave. 

• Pulled concrete 2 areas on N. Godley Station near Savannah Tire. 

• Pulled and poured concrete Towne Lakes Community  

• Pulled and poured concrete on Pooler Pkwy Hwy 80 to I-16 

• Removed forms for concrete pour. 

• Removed Asphalt and repaired area Garden Acres / Rogers St. 

• Added Cold patch on Rogers and Pine barren Rd. 

• Poured concrete sidewalk at 113 Towne Lakes sidewalk. 

• Pulled and poured concrete sidewalk at 110 Towne Lake Community 

• Pulled and poured concrete sidewalk at 133 Towne Lake Community 

• Pulled and poured concrete and cold patch 100 Towne Lake Community 

• Cleaned up area, filled holes and repaired Sprinkler head 110 Towne Lakes 

Signs: 

• Replaced 10 signs throughout the city. 

• Repaired 26 signs throughout the city. 

Street Sweeper: 

• 94 miles swept. 

Storm Water:  

• Completed multiple work orders throughout the city. 

• Cleared and mowed the canal behind 807 Robin Drive. 

• Completed  

• Completed 16,671 of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

Canal Maintenance:  

• Cleaned & Dug the Southbound Hwy 80 exit ramp. 

• Cleaned and repaired holes in the water tower canal access road. 

• Repaired the access road to Sangrena Canal down to Durham Park. 

• Preformed multiple canal inspections. 

 

 

Page 48 of 264



Public Works Admin: 

• Reviewed 22 sets of site plans.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Matthew E. Saxon  

Assistant City Manager 

Page 49 of 264



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matt Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of February   

Mrs. Williams, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

Water: 

         

Inspected 58 Grease trap inspections. 

27 C.O inspections conducted. 

Replaced 15 residential and/or commercial laterals. 

Completed multiple misc. service orders throughout the city. 

Repaired 2” main on Rothwell Street. 

Repaired 6” water main on Parsons Avenue. 

Repaired chlorine system at well #1. 

       Witnessed the testing and certification of 100 backflow preventers. 

Performed 680 line locates requested by the (UPC) Utility Protection Center. 

 

Sewer & WWTP:  

EOM report attached. 

  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Matt Saxon   

Assistant City Manager 

Page 50 of 264



 

 
  FEBRUARY 

2023 
Monthly Report 

480 Edsel Drive, Ste 100 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 

Page 51 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   

Page 52 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

SECTION 1.0  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City 
of Pooler for review.  Departmental reports and requested 
supplemental data can be found enclosed.  
 
MONTH HIGHLIGHT 
 

- SEWER – Responded to (7) grinder pump calls 
- SEWER – Responded to (6) sewer blockage/leak calls 
- SEWER- Repaired (1) sewer lateral hit by Hargray 

o Symons Street 
- WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS 

▪ PO-LS-45.02 East Haven Pump_2 Station Alarm Tripping Breaker 
▪ PO-LS-42.07 WHATLEY Buildings and Grounds Fence  
▪ PO-LS-24.05 BRIDGEWATER Control Panel Replace Breaker 
▪ PO-LS-40.05 DANIELS TRACT Control Panel Tripped Thermals 
▪ PO-LS-30.02 PARK LANE DUPLEXES Pump_2 Remove Debris 
▪ PO-LS-38 Joel Street Station Alarm 
▪ PO-LS-16.06 SOMERSBY Wet Well High Wet Well 
▪ PO-LS-31.05 SOUTH SKINNER STREET Control Panel Controller 

Adjustment 
- WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

▪ PO-WW-PM-10 Permeate Pump_1 Replace Pump Flange 
▪ PO-WW_EF-11 Plant Water Pump 2 Pumps fail to run 
▪ PO-WW-RW-05 MECHANICAL BAR SCREEN_2 Replace Motor 

Starter 
▪ PO-WW-AS-05 Blower 4_Aeration Grid VFD Overheating/Replace 

Fan 
▪ PO-WW-SD-12 Digestor Blower_2 VFD Overheating/Replace Fan 
▪ PO-WW-PM-12 Permeate Pump_3 Replace Pump Flange 
▪ PO-WW-EQ-21 EQ Blower_1 Replace Belts 

 

Page 53 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 

Page 54 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

 

SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  

Page 55 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 

Page 56 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 

  

Page 57 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 

Page 58 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

 

SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 

I. Approved Projects 
▪ Savannah Quarters Office 
▪ Pittman Subaru 

 
II. Projects Under Review 

▪ 2101 Travis Field Rd (Submittal #1) 
▪ Blakely Commons Multifamily (Submittal #1) 
▪ McDonalds (Submittal #1) 
▪ Chick-fil-A (Submittal #1) 
▪ Sharon Court (Submittal #3) 
▪ Cambria Suites (Submittal #1) 
▪ I-16 Mixed Use Access Rd (Submittal #1) 

 
III. Projects Waiting On Responses 

▪ Vystar – 1st review completed on 2/28/2023 
▪ Barrow Drive Trailer Parking Extension – 4th review completed 2/24/2023 
▪ Outpost Bay (aka Jimmy DeLoach Single Family) – 2nd review completed 

2/20/2023 
▪ 7 Brew Coffee Shop – 1st review completed 2/17/2023 
▪ Pet Paradise – 1st review completed 2/16/2023 
▪ Element Hotel & Commercial Space – 4th review completed on 2/15/2023 
▪ Mosaic Gardens – 1st review completed 2/6/2023 
▪ 212 E Hwy 80 – 1st review completed 1/17/2023 
▪ Valvoline – 1st review completed 1/11/2023 
▪ Pooler One – Pine Barren Road Entrance  - 1st review completed on 

11/22/2022 
▪ Quik Trip – 5th review completed on 11/16/2022 
▪ Pooler Parkway & Quacco Rd Widening – 2nd review completed on 

10/11/2022 
▪ Transportation Logistics Terminal Tract 2A – 1st review completed on 

11/8/2022 
▪ Lot 3 Dean Forest Business Park – 3rd review completed on 10/18/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L1 – 2nd review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L2 – 2nd Review Completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L3 – 2nd Review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Bragg Tract Phase 1 – 1st review completed on 9/22/2022 

 
 
 

Page 59 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bond Review: 
 

I. Approved Bond Requests 
▪ Harmony Townhomes – Warranty Bond for Water & Sewer 
▪ Forest Lakes Phase 10 – Warranty Bond for Water & Sewer 
▪ Ryals Morgan Tract Phase II – Warranty Bond for Water & Sewer 

 
II. Bond Requests Under Review 

▪ N/A 
 
Additional Engineering Services: 

 
▪ The City has authorized construction of Lift Station #21 & 22. EOM has 

since received the revised set of Lift Station Plans. EOM is in process of 
updating the electrical specs for the project.  
 

▪ In January 2023, EOM submitted the updated cost estimates for the 
LMIG roadway improvements, with cost values reflective of 2023 
prices. In Summer 2022, EOM prepared and submitted the initial 2022 
LMIG Bid Documents to the City. 

  
 

 
  
 
  

Page 60 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 

Page 61 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  

Page 62 of 264



 

Pooler Monthly Report – FEBRUARY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 

Page 63 of 264



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 01 01 23 01 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 02 09

1

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

8.4 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****
 mg/L

  01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

45.7 47.8
 lb/d

**** 2.0 2.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3358 3917
 lb/d

**** 248 272
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH
 

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.5 **** 7.1
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

  01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

22.8 23.9
 lb/d

**** 1.0 1.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2486 2973
 lb/d

**** 184 197
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 4.187 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

Page 64 of 264



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 01 01 23 01 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 02 09

2

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

4.9 8.9
 lb/d

**** 0.2 0.4
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 4.330 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 10.9 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2.8 3.5
****

**** 0.3 0.4
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.195 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2.9 2.97
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****
****

  99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.0 1.0
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

  02/DA GR GRAB

Page 65 of 264



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 01 01 23 01 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 02 09

3

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.6000 ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ug/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 2.22 ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ng/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

99.5 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

99.2 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

74 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

  01/30 CA CALCTD

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

Page 66 of 264



January 2023 Permit Data

Daily Data

Daily

1/1/2023 - 1/31/2023

Pooler

Pooler RainFall

Precip In/Day

Inches/Day

Pooler

Effluent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Turbidity NTU

NTU

Pooler

Influent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Influent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Fecal Coliform

#/100ML

1/1/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.270

1/2/2023 - Monday 0.00 3.096

1/3/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 2.932 1.00

1/4/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 2.783 287.00 188.00 2.00 1.00

1/5/2023 - Thursday 0.50 2.932 257.00 188.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

1/6/2023 - Friday 0.00 2.719 273.00 190.00 2.00 1.00

1/7/2023 - Saturday 0.00 2.605

1/8/2023 - Sunday 0.00 2.789

1/9/2023 - Monday 0.00 2.963

1/10/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.012 1.00

1/11/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 2.745 245.00 188.00 2.00 1.00

1/12/2023 - Thursday 0.00 2.573 226.00 141.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

1/13/2023 - Friday 0.39 2.647 258.00 190.00 2.00 1.00

1/14/2023 - Saturday 0.00 2.744

1/15/2023 - Sunday 0.00 2.880

1/16/2023 - Monday 0.00 2.841

1/17/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 2.785 1.00

1/18/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 2.713 229.00 192.00 2.00 1.00

1/19/2023 - Thursday 0.02 2.613 264.00 198.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

1/20/2023 - Friday 0.00 2.554 247.00 200.00 2.00 1.00

1/21/2023 - Saturday 0.00 2.802

1/22/2023 - Sunday 0.38 2.692

1/23/2023 - Monday 1.38 3.313

1/24/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.054 1.00

1/25/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 2.578 254.00 185.00 2.00 1.00

1/26/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.229 227.00 182.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

1/27/2023 - Friday 0.00 2.784 210.00 160.00 2.00 1.00

1/28/2023 - Saturday 0.00 3.159

1/29/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.158

1/30/2023 - Monday 1.45 3.533

1/31/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.478 1.00

Sum 4.12 89.976 2977.00 2202.00 24.00 12.00 9.00

Avg 0.13 2.902 248.00 183.50 2.00 1.00 1.00

Max 1.45 3.533 287.00 200.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

Min 0.00 2.554 210.00 141.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

GMean 1.00

Page 67 of 264



January 2023 Permit Data

Pooler

Effluent

Nh3 N 

Ammonia

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

TKN

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Org Nitrogen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Ortho 

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Mercury

1631E

NG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Diss Oxygen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

pH

SU

Pooler

Solids 

Removed

Dry TON

9.54 6.52 0

9.38 6.58 0

8.67 6.85 4

0.31 0.25 8.46 6.78 4

0.63 0.20 8.58 6.75 4

0.18 0.14 8.91 7.05 4

8.77 7.08 0

8.64 6.99 0

8.58 7.11 4

8.95 6.82 4

0.14 0.22 10.90 4.33 4.19 0.20 8.66 6.98 4

0.10 0.24 8.45 6.89 4

0.13 0.29 8.40 6.93 4

8.91 6.83 0

9.03 6.92 0

8.72 6.66 0

8.77 6.87 4

0.15 0.31 8.89 6.88 4

0.15 0.35 8.49 6.88 4

0.16 0.39 8.71 6.81 4

8.91 6.94 0

8.35 6.95 0

8.73 6.88 4

8.94 6.87 4

0.22 0.22 3.60 2.22 8.78 6.94 2

0.17 0.34 8.93 6.78 4

0.19 0.24 8.83 6.80 4

9.64 6.55 0

9.62 6.73 0

8.94 6.72 2

8.97 6.64 2

2.53 3.20 10.90 4.33 4.19 0.20 3.60 2.22 274.15 211.98 74

0.21 0.27 10.90 4.33 4.19 0.20 3.60 2.22 8.84 6.84 2

0.63 0.39 10.90 4.33 4.19 0.20 3.60 2.22 9.64 7.11 4

0.10 0.14 10.90 4.33 4.19 0.20 3.60 2.22 8.35 6.52 0

Page 68 of 264



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 

Page 69 of 264



 

 

Page 70 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................................. 1

Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................ 2

Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............................................. 3

ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 4

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................ 5

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................................................................................................ 6

Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................................ 7

Page 71 of 264



 

 

 

Page 72 of 264



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)

Page 73 of 264



 

     

Page 74 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

1 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 3,547,818.75$    3,004,635.67$   

Licenses and permits............................................. 199,833.38         452,571.33        

Intergovernmental................................................. 299,313.26         327,988.45        

Charges for services............................................... 381,407.78         227,934.68        

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 157,196.76         103,910.21        

Investment earnings.............................................. 85,070.33           2,062.17            

Contributions and donations.................................. 51,279.54           12,432.35          

Miscellaneous........................................................ 20,938.70           39,492.34          

Total revenues............................................................ 4,742,858.50      4,171,027.20      571,831.30         13.71%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 445,992.30         424,587.69        

Judicial................................................................ 63,490.01           78,401.67          

Public safety....................................................... 2,150,028.53      2,076,159.38     

Public works........................................................ 606,124.43         526,418.88        

Health and welfare............................................. 20,326.27           16,812.25          

Culture and recreation....................................... 217,847.50         267,349.10        

Housing and development................................. 135,784.52         106,365.68        

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 545,108.43         152,624.42        

Interest............................................................... 80,001.85           39,627.59          

Total expenditures..................................................... 4,264,703.84      3,688,346.66      576,357.18         15.63%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... 478,154.66         482,680.54        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 103,499.95         75,468.58          

Sale of general capital assets................................ 228,356.50         ‐                     

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 48,989.40           14,267.25          

Total other financing sources (uses) 380,845.85         89,735.83           291,110.02         324.41%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... 859,000.51         572,416.37        

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 32,491,719.49    27,820,097.95   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 33,350,720.00$  28,392,514.32$ 

Page 75 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

2 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 344,300.00$       606,138.50$      

Investment earnings.............................................. 623.68                144.33               

Total revenues........................................................ 344,923.68         606,282.83         (261,359.15)        ‐43.11%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... 36,954.55           15,000.00          

Total expenditures................................................. 36,954.55           15,000.00           21,954.55           146.36%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 307,969.13         591,282.83        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      ‐                     

Net change in fund balance....................................... 307,969.13         591,282.83        

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,581,923.20      2,026,513.14     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,889,892.33$    2,617,795.97$   

Page 76 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

3 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. ‐$                    7,500.00$          

Investment earnings.............................................. 46.87                  9.76                   

Total revenues........................................................ 46.87                  7,509.76             (7,462.89)            ‐99.38%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... (564.00)               ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. (564.00)               ‐                      (564.00)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 610.87                7,509.76            

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 120,812.07         109,758.62        

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 121,422.94$       117,268.38$      

Page 77 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

4 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. 2,117.86             284.02               

Total revenues........................................................ 2,117.86             284.02                1,833.84             645.67%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 2,117.86             284.02               

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 7,675.69             1,132.84            

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 9,793.55$           1,416.86$          

Page 78 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

5 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 206,999.90$       150,933.96$      

Total revenues........................................................ 206,999.90         150,933.96         56,065.94           37.15%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 103,499.95         75,466.98          

Total expenditures................................................. 103,499.95         75,466.98           28,032.97           37.15%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 103,499.95         75,466.98          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (103,499.95)        (75,466.98)          (28,032.97)          37.15%

Total other financing sources (uses) (103,499.95)        (75,466.98)         

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Page 79 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

6 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings..................................... 22,877.38           302.79               

Total revenues.............................................. 22,877.38           302.79                22,574.59           7455.53%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public safety.............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Public works.............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Recreation................................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Debt service

Principal.................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Interest...................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures........................................ ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 22,877.38           302.79               

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 6,378,722.94      4,420,409.33     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 6,401,600.32$    4,420,712.12$   

Page 80 of 264



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Two Months Ended February 28, 2023 and 2022 

7 
 

2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 386,750.11$       147,510.17$      

Sewer fees.............................................................. 358,420.17         163,384.76        

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 26,382.31           20,763.05          

Total operating revenues........................................... 771,552.59         331,657.98         439,894.61         132.64%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 290,034.41         112,130.12        

Materials and supplies....................................... 160,701.03         53,734.54          

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 450,735.44         165,864.66         284,870.78         171.75%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 108,861.38         106,737.25        

Purchased and contracted services.................... 65,206.46           45,719.21          

Materials and supplies....................................... 149,862.65         142,964.91        

Capital outlay..................................................... 35,616.00           76,920.00          

Total water............................................................. 359,546.49         372,341.37         (12,794.88)          ‐3.44%

Total operating expenses........................................... 810,281.93         538,206.03         272,075.90         50.55%

Operating income (loss)............................................ (38,729.34)          (206,548.05)        167,818.71         ‐81.25%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 67,924.38           2,432.51            

Interest expense..................................................... (46,382.05)          (83,795.83)         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. 21,542.33           (81,363.32)          102,905.65         ‐126.48%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ (17,187.01)          (287,911.37)        270,724.36         ‐94.03%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees.................................................................. 168,911.34         94,760.30          

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 968,007.75         389,049.29        

Total capital contributions......................................... 1,136,919.09      483,809.59         653,109.50         134.99%

Change in net position............................................... 1,119,732.08      195,898.22         923,833.86         471.59%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 64,251,216.04    54,822,228.61   

Net position, end of year........................................... 65,370,948.12$  55,018,126.83$ 
 

Page 81 of 264



Page 82 of 264



Page 83 of 264



 

 
 Council Report  

Monday March 20, 2023 

February 2023   

 
• A total of 75 Part 1 crimes reported in the month of February.  

• From prior year 2022, there is an increase of 8%. 

• A total of 25 shopliftings reported in the month of February.  

• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 32%. 

• Total Calls for service in February were 1,946. 

• From prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 3%. 

• A total of 1120 citations were issued in the month of February.  

• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 2% 

• A total of 92 arrest were made in the month of February.  

• From prior year 2022, this is a decrease of -17%. 

• A total of 22 DUI arrest were made in the month of February.  

• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 14%. 

 

Activity Time Period 
2/1-2/23/2023 

Year to Date 
2023 

Year to Date 
2022 

Percentage 
Change from 

21 - 22 

     

Part 1 crimes 75 135 123 8% 

Shopliftings 25 50 38 32% 

Calls for service 1,946 4,170 4,308 -3% 

Citation 1,120 2,727 2,676 2% 

Arrests 92 205 246 -17% 

DUI arrests 22 48 42 14% 

Page 84 of 264



1

2

3

4

5

6 Registration remained opened for tennis, gymnastics and dance, as well as spring

7 Tennis classes began.

8

1

2

 

3

4

5

1

2

3

Pooler Parks & Recreation

District 2 tournament.

Monthly Report: February 2023

Recreation Department

Youth basketball season ended.  All star teams participated in the GRPA

Winter gymnastics session continued.

Fall baseball teams continued practicing at Pooler Park, and the 

Savannah Hurricanes basketball team practiced at the gym on Rogers Street.

Pooler Gaelic football club continued practicing at complex.

Seniors participated in day trips to Charleston, SC, Sylvania and Savanah.

Senior Center

The community center was rented each weekend in February.

The monthly TVIP class was held at the community center.

Dance classes continued.

Parks performed routine maintenance at all 5 parks, the community and senior

to attend at the center.

Parks

youth sports (baseball, softball, tee ball, soccer and volleyball)

The senior center celebrated black history month with an event for the seniors

All regularly scheduled classes continued in February.

centers, and the cemetery.

Page 85 of 264



Page 86 of 264



Page 87 of 264



Page 88 of 264



Page 89 of 264



Page 90 of 264



City of Pooler
Single Family Residential Permits

February 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
2/16/2023 230090 Westbrook Glen 173 Wood Haven Ln., Lot 430 Pulte Home Company Same 51009G11008 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230160 Westbrook  Area K-1 741 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 925 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03019 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230161 Westbrook  Area K-1 743 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 926 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03020 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230162 Westbrook  Area K-1 744 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 927 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05002 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230163 Westbrook  Area K-1 742 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 928 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05003 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230164 Westbrook  Area K-1 704 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 947 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R04006 Yes/No
2/2/2023 230165 Westbrook  Area K-2 163 Binscombe Ln., Lot 986 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05052 Yes/No
2/3/2023 230168 Westbrook Glen 138 Harvest Hill, Lot 832 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01021

2/13/2023 230173 Westbrook Glen 136 Harvest Hill, Lot 833 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01020
2/13/2023 230174 Westbrook Glen 102 Harvest Hill, Lot 847 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01003

Total 10

Page 91 of 264



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

February 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
2/2/2023 230136 Benton Grove Townhomes 17 Naples Ln., Lot 17A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05027
2/2/2023 230137 Benton Grove Townhomes 19 Naples Ln., Lot 21B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05026
2/2/2023 230142 Benton Grove Townhomes 21 Naples Ln., Lot 17C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05025
2/2/2023 230143 Benton Grove Townhomes 23 Naples Ln., Lot 17D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05024
2/2/2023 230153 Benton Grove Townhomes 25 Naples Ln., Lot 18A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05022
2/2/2023 230154 Benton Grove Townhomes 27 Naples Ln., Lot 18B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05021
2/2/2023 230155 Benton Grove Townhomes 29 Naples Ln., Lot 18C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05020
2/2/2023 230156 Benton Grove Townhomes 31 Naples Ln., Lot 18D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05019
2/2/2023 230157 Benton Grove Townhomes 28 Naples Ln., Lot 20A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03006
2/2/2023 230158 Benton Grove Townhomes 26 Naples Ln., Lot 20B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03007
2/2/2023 230159 Benton Grove Townhomes 24 Naples Ln., Lot 20C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03008
2/9/2023 230183 Benton Grove Townhomes 1 Naples Ln., Lot 15A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05037 Yes/No
2/9/2023 230184 Benton Grove Townhomes 3 Naples Ln., Lot 15B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05036 Yes/No
2/9/2023 230185 Benton Grove Townhomes 5 Naples Ln., Lot 15C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05035 Yes/No
2/9/2023 230186 Benton Grove Townhomes 7 Naples Ln., Lot 15D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05034 Yes/No

2/13/2023 230198 Benton Grove Townhomes 9 Naples Ln., Lot 16A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05032
2/13/2023 230199 Benton Grove Townhomes 11 Naples Ln., Lot 16B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05031
2/13/2023 230200 Benton Grove Townhomes 13 Naples Ln., Lot 16C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05030
2/13/2023 230201 Benton Grove Townhomes 15 Naples Ln., Lot 16D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05029
2/13/2023 230206 Benton Grove Townhomes 20 Naples Ln., Lot 21A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03010
2/13/2023 230207 Benton Grove Townhomes 18 Naples Ln., Lot 21B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03011
2/13/2023 230208 Benton Grove Townhomes 16 Naples Ln., Lot 21C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03012
2/13/2023 230209 Benton Grove Townhomes 14 Naples Ln., Lot 21D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03013
2/13/2023 230210 Benton Grove Townhomes 12 Naples Ln., Lot 21E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03014
2/13/2023 230211 Benton Grove Townhomes 10 Naples Ln., Lot 22A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03015
2/13/2023 230212 Benton Grove Townhomes 8 Naples Ln., Lot 22B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03016
2/13/2023 230213 Benton Grove Townhomes 6 Naples Ln., Lot 22C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03017
2/13/2023 230214 Benton Grove Townhomes 4 Naples Ln., Lot 22D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03018
2/13/2023 230215 Benton Grove Townhomes 2 Naples Ln., Lot 22E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03019
2/16/2023 230218 Benton Grove Townhomes 48 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03039 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230219 Benton Grove Townhomes 46 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03040 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230220 Benton Grove Townhomes 44 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03041 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230221 Benton Grove Townhomes 42 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03042 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230222 Benton Grove Townhomes 40 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03043 Yes/No

Page 92 of 264



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

February 2023

2/16/2023 230226 Benton Grove Townhomes 38 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03044 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230227 Benton Grove Townhomes 36 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03045 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230228 Benton Grove Townhomes 34 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03046 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230229 Benton Grove Townhomes 32 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03047 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230230 Benton Grove Townhomes 30 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03048 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230231 Benton Grove Townhomes 56 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03035 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230232 Benton Grove Townhomes 54 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03036 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230233 Benton Grove Townhomes 52 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03037 Yes/No
2/16/2023 230235 Benton Grove Townhomes 50 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03038 Yes/No
2/28/2023 230281 Benton Grove Townhomes 51 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03020
2/28/2023 230282 Benton Grove Townhomes 53 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03021
2/28/2023 230285 Benton Grove Townhomes 55 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03022
2/28/2023 230286 Benton Grove Townhomes 57 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03023
2/28/2023 230287 Benton Grove Townhomes 61 Amalfi Ave., Lot 24A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03024
2/28/2023 230288 Benton Grove Townhomes 63 Amalfi Ave., Lot 24B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03025
2/28/2023 230289 Benton Grove Townhomes 65 Amalfi Ave., Lot 24C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03026

Total 50

Page 93 of 264



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

February 2023

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
2/2/2023 220646 1713 Old Dean Forest Rd. Griffin Contracting Inc 1713 Old Dean Forest LLC Modular Office Building 5098804026

2/14/2023 221469 421 Morgan Lakes Industrial Blvd. Mahany Construction Company Morgan Lakes Industrial XIII, LLC Office/Warehouse 5101501030
2/8/2023 230014 2 Venice Pl. Kenneth Scott Builders Dream Finders Homes LLC Benton Grove Clubhouse 5001701040

2/15/2023 230056 2321 Pooler Pkwy  Units 101-111 The Dewitt-Tilton Group Mitul Patel Retail Shell 5100901107
2/2/2023 230139 2 Venice Pl. Year Round Pools Dream Finders Homes LLC Commercial Pool 5001701040
2/10/2023 230147 60 Triple B Trl. Bergman KRPS LLC Duke Realty Diesel Generator 5101501019

 

Total 6   

Page 94 of 264



Misc. Permits February 2023
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone
2/13/2023 230121 31 Canal Bank Rd. Cancun Pools & Spas LLC Sheng Chen Inground Concrete Pool 5100902054
2/2/2023 230144 402 James Rd. Absolute Contracting Inc. Derek Knight Replace Shingles/Plywood 5000411009

2/28/2023 230145 Dean Forest Rd. Graham Outdoor Advertising LLC Albert Wall Billboard Sign 5098804027
2/16/2022 230148 107 Oldwood Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Inc Janice Oliver Aluminum Fence
2/3/2023 230177 325 Merganser Dr. Tuff Shed John Smith Storage Building 51010G05012
2/3/2023 230178 158 Silverton Rd. Coastal Service Experts Ben Hooks Mechanical
2/3/2023 230179 211 Standing Pine Cir. John Whitby Same 6' Wood Privacy Fence
2/3/2023 230180 184 Benelli Dr., Veterans Fence Xinia Azimoara 6' Wood Privacy Fence
2/3/2023 230181 1009 SH Morgan Pkwy Champion Fire Protection BMR Logistics Fire Sprinkler System
2/3/2023 230182 206 S Chestnut ST. Southern Power Electric Dozier Cook Electrical
2/9/2023 230187 1 Godley StationBlvd. Unit C-101 JH Cleveland Construction Terry Randolph Repair/Reconstruct Deck 50017B03010
2/9/2023 230190 3002 Benton Grove Breland Well Drilling DD Benton LLC Deep Well 5001701039
2/9/2023 230191 257 Spanton Crescent Tippins Homes, LLC Monica and Lane Oglesby Close in Back Porch 51009F05003

2/21/2023 230192 405 W Hwy 80 Ste 106 Doug Bean Signs Jeremy Nease Wall Sign
2/8/2023 230193 168 Tahoe Dr. Thompson & Thompson Nathan Vasquez Mechanical

2/24/2023 230194 112 Cross Creek Dr. Architectural Pools Arnold Gomez Inground Fiberglass Pool 51010A07011
2/9/2023 230196 1 Godley StationBlvd. Unit C-104 Champion Fire Protection Bob Engler Fire Sprinkler System
2/9/2023 230197 1 Godley StationBlvd. Unit C-101 Champion Fire Protection Skinny Salads Fire Sprinkler System

2/13/2023 230202 7 Superior Ln. Pation Renovations Unlimited Naveena Gnaniaih 4' Black Aluminum Fence
2/9/2023 230203 1316 DJ's Way Titanium Solar LLC Linda Irby Rooftop Solar Panels 51011A13020

2/10/2023 230204 108 Champlain Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Inc Kayla Todd Aluminum Fence
2/13/2023 230205 209 Merganser Dr. Sun Drenched Pools Anthony Pennington Inground Fiberglass Pool 51010G0005
2/3/2023 230216 181 Wood Haven Ln. Generator Supercenter Asa Henry Nails Electrical

2/15/2023 230217 313 W. Collins St. Echo Homebuilders Trisha Cook Detached Garage 5000302003
2/15/2023 230225 129 Continental Blvd. Pametto State Sign Installation Camping World 2 Wall Signs and 1 Pylon Face
2/15/2023 230236 112 Longleaf Cir. Generator Supercenter Johnny King Electrical
2/16/2023 230237 120 River Run Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Inc Dave Clark Aluminum Fence
2/16/2023 230238 143 Nandina Way JDH Decks and Fences Inc Julia Hartenfels 4' Vinyl Pickett Fence
2/21/2023 230239 1215 E. Hwy 80 Unit 100 Doug Bean Signs T&M Commercial Development Two Wall Signs
2/21/2023 230241 109 Barrow Dr. Jeff Stewart Electrical Services Comcast Electrical
2/21/2023 230242 2100 Pooler Pkwy Jeff Stewart Electrical Services Comcast Electrical
2/21/2023 230244 200 Tanger Outlets Blvd Sign D' Sign Tanger Outlets Wall Sign
2/23/2023 230245 221 Park Chase JDH Decks and Fences Inc Gary Michaels Aluminum Fence
2/23/2023 230264 100 Como Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Inc Angie Shunk Aluminum Fence
2/23/2023 230265 33 Old Bridge Dr. Freedom Forever Rebecca Smith Rooftop Solar Panels 51015A01022
2/23/2023 230266 221 Tahoe Dr. Freedom Forever Daniel Shorter Rooftop Solar Panels 51014c03040
2/24/2023 230267 2101 Travis Field Rd. Griffin Contracting Inc. 2101 Travis Partners, LLC Demolition 5098601003
2/27/2023 230272 155 Martello Rd. JDH Decks and Fences Inc William Sheppard Aluminum Fence

Total 38

Page 95 of 264



City of Pooler
Mobile Home Permits

february 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Mobile Home Installer Owner

Total 0

Page 96 of 264



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

February 2023
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

2/1/2023 220121 Ellis Park 101 Buttermere Way, Lot 333 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/1/2023 211277 Hunt Club 358 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 612 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
2/1/2023 220020 Hunt Club 306 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 638 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
2/2/2023 220089 Westwood Reserve 207 Merganser Dr., Lot 3 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/2/2023 220663 Westwood Reserve 33 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 78 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/6/2023 210693 The Farm at Morgan Lakes 118 Pickett Fence Ln., Lot 42 Single Family Detached Trust Homes - South Coast, LLC Same
2/6/2023 220855 Westwood Reserve 48 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 68 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/9/2023 220610 Forest Lakes 129 Como Dr., Lot 928 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same

2/10/2023 220021 Hunt Club 304 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 639 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
2/10/2023 210620 Hunt Club 341 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 648 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
2/14/2023 220650 Westbrook Glen 156 Harvest Hill, Lot 823 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
2/14/2023 220651 Westbrook Glen 130 Harvest Hill, Lot 836 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
2/14/2023 220847 Westwood Reserve 54 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 65 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/14/2023 220848 Westwood Reserve 52 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 66 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/14/2023 220160 Westwood Reserve 212 Merganser Dr., Lot 14 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/14/2023 220674 100 Blue Moon Xing, Unit 116 Blue Moon Nutrition Marchese Construction Blue Moon Nutrition 
2/16/2023 2206314 1000 Pine Barren Rd., Unit 111 Massage Crystal Kim Man Kwok Sean Reeder
2/17/2023 220936 Westbrook Glen 132 Harvest Hill, Lot 835 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
2/21/2023 220935 Westbrook Glen 150 Harvest Hill, Lot 826 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
2/21/2023 220608 Forest Lakes 104 Champlain Dr., Lot 553 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
2/22/2023 220100 Hunt Club 300 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 641 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
2/22/2023 220483 Westwood Reserve 299 Merganser Dr., Lot 47 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/23/2023 220545 Clubhouse Residential 31 Golf Dr., Lot 489 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same
2/23/2023 220974 Westbrook Glen 101 Harvest Hill, Lot 785 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company Same
2/24/2023 220551 Clubhouse Residential 21 Palladian Way, Lot 496 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same
2/24/2023 220417 Forest Lakes 121 Como Dr., Lot 932 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
2/24/2023 220604 Forest Lakes 138 Champlain Dr., Lot 534 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
2/24/2023 220251 Westbrook  101 Wood Glen Retreat, Lot 405 Single Family Detached Tippins Homes Michael Funk
2/27/2023 220549 Clubhouse Residential 29 Golf Dr., Lot 490 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same
2/27/2023 220339 Forest Lakes 9 Grand View Ct., Lot 521 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
2/28/2023 220772 1543 Dean Forest Rd. Office/Trailer Parking Facility C. Merrill Construction 1545 Dean Forest , LLC
2/28/2023 211356 135 Coleman Blvd., Bldg 2 Fedex Buildling Evans General Contractors Suncap Property Group
2/28/2023 220225 Westwood Reserve 317 Merganser Dr., Lot 38 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
2/28/2023 210475 Westbrook 201 Park Chase, Lot 717 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same

Total 34

Page 97 of 264



Monthly Report
February 2023

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 168 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 531 Inspections (Included in Salary)

Total Inspections: 699 Inspections

Page 98 of 264



Page 99 of 264



Page 100 of 264



Page 101 of 264



Page 102 of 264



Page 103 of 264



Page 104 of 264



Page 105 of 264



Page 106 of 264



Page 107 of 264



Page 108 of 264



Page 109 of 264



Page 110 of 264



Page 111 of 264



Page 112 of 264



Page 113 of 264



Page 114 of 264



Page 115 of 264



Page 116 of 264



Page 117 of 264



Page 118 of 264



Page 119 of 264



Page 120 of 264



Page 121 of 264



Page 122 of 264



Page 123 of 264



Page 124 of 264



Page 125 of 264



Page 126 of 264



Page 127 of 264



Page 128 of 264



Page 129 of 264



Page 130 of 264



Page 131 of 264



Page 132 of 264



Page 133 of 264



Page 134 of 264



Page 135 of 264



Page 136 of 264



Page 137 of 264



Page 138 of 264



Page 139 of 264



Page 140 of 264



Page 141 of 264



Page 142 of 264



Page 143 of 264



Page 144 of 264



Page 145 of 264



Page 146 of 264



Page 147 of 264



Page 148 of 264



Page 149 of 264



Page 150 of 264



Page 151 of 264



Page 152 of 264



Page 153 of 264



Page 154 of 264



Page 155 of 264



Page 156 of 264



Page 157 of 264



Page 158 of 264



Page 159 of 264



Page 160 of 264



Page 161 of 264



Page 162 of 264



Page 163 of 264



Page 164 of 264



Page 165 of 264



Page 166 of 264



Page 167 of 264



Page 168 of 264



Page 169 of 264



Engineer

50 Park of Commerce Way

Thomas & Hutton
Engineering Co.

Savannah, GA  31405

03/09/2023

Page 170 of 264



Amendment No. _1_to the
Contract for Roadside Mowing Services 2023

Executed March 1, 2023
between

City of Pooler
and

The McGraley Company, LLC

THIS AMENDMENT NO.  __1__ (the "Amendment") is entered into this ____ day of _____________ , 2023 by and 
between The City of Pooler with offices at US Hwy 80, Pooler GA 31322 and The McGraley Company, LLC with 
offices at 955 Indigo Road, Springfield, GA 31329

WHEREAS, THE City and The McGraley Company, LLC entered into a Contract dated March 1st 2023 for Roadside 
Mowing Services 2023 (as amended, the “Contract”); and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the provisions of the Contract; and

NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises in the Contract, and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as set 
forth below.  

1. Fee: Additional services to perform Mowing services for the City of Pooler Parks and Recreation in the amount 
of $314,220.96.  Monthly billing of $26,185.08.  The services will consist of the following: 
Recreation Complex 10.32 acres
Pooler Park (Rogers Street) 13.57 acres
Joe Baker Park 1.34 acres
Gleason Park .63 acres
Memorial Park 4.97 acres
Senior/Community Center 5 acres

2. Except as specifically set forth herein, all other terms and provisions of the Contract shall remain unaffected by 
this Amendment and continue in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. __1___ to be signed by their duly 
authorized representatives the day and year first written above.

      The McGraley Company, LLC                    City of Pooler

By: __________________________________ By: __________________________________

      Printed Name: _________________________       Printed Name: _________________________

Title: ________________________________ Title: ________________________________

Dated: _______________________________ Dated: _______________________________

Page 171 of 264



GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

FY 2023  COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

         This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 

City of Pooler (the Grantee) is made pursuant to the authority of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 

2023 (Public Law 117-328) and the Explanatory Statement for Division L of that Act, which was 

printed in the Senate section of the Congressional Record on December 20, 2022 (Explanatory 

Statement).

         In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations under this 

Grant Agreement, HUD and the Grantee agree as follows:

         Subject to the provisions of the Grant Agreement, HUD will make grant funds in the amount        

of $2,000,000 available to the Grantee.  

ARTICLE II. Total Grant Amount 

100 SW Highway 80 Pooler Pooler, GA 31322

B-23-CP-GA-0458

14.251 Economic Development Initiative,

Community Project Funding, and Miscellaneous Grants

Date of grant obligation

August 31, 2031

Grantee Name: City of Pooler

Grantee Address:

Grantee's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI):

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

Assistance Listing Number and Name

Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date

Period of Performance/Budget Period End Date

Grantee's Employer Identification Number (EIN)

ARTICLE I.  Definitions  

 

The definitions at 2 CFR 200.1 apply to this Grant Agreement, except where this Grant 

Agreement specifically states otherwise. 

 

Budget period is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

 

Period of Performance is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

ARTICLE III. Award-Specific Requirements 

 

A.  Federal Award Description. The Grantee must use the Federal funds provided 

under this Grant Agreement (Grant Funds) to carry out the Grantee’s “Project.”  Unless 

changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee’s 

Project shall be as described in the Project Narrative that is approved by HUD as of the 

date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

Project Narrative as Appendix 1 to the Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this 

Grant Agreement.   

 

Page 172 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

   

B.  Approved Budget. The Grantee must use the Grant Funds as provided by the 

Approved Budget.  Unless changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant 

Agreement, the Approved Budget shall be the line-item budget that is approved by HUD as of 

the date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

line-item budget as Appendix 2 to this Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this Grant 

Agreement.  

 

C. Project and Budget Changes. All changes to the Grantee’s Project or Approved Budget 

must be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308 and this Grant Agreement. To request HUD’s 

approval for a change in the Project or Approved Budget, the Grantee must submit a formal letter 

to the Director of HUD’s Office of Economic Development - Congressional Grants Division 

through the assigned Grant Officer.  The letter must be submitted by email to the assigned Grant 

Officer and must provide justification for the change.  The email submitting the letter must also 

include a revised project narrative or revised line-item budget, as applicable, that includes the 

requested change. The Grantee is prohibited from making project or budget changes that would 

conflict with the Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions described in Article III, section D of 

this Grant Agreement.  The assigned Grant Officer for this grant is provided in the Award Letter 

for this grant and found on HUD’s website. The HUD Office of Economic Development – 

Congressional Grants Division will notify the Grantee in writing, by email, whether HUD 

approves or disapproves the change.  Before the Grantee expends Grant Funds in accordance 

with any change approved by HUD or otherwise allowed by 2 CFR 200.308, the Grantee must 

update its grant information in Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) to reflect that 

change. 

 

D.  Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions. The conditions that apply to the Grant 

Funds as provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 and the Explanatory Statement 

are hereby incorporated and made part of this Grant Agreement. In the event of a conflict 

between those conditions, the conditions provided by the Act will govern.  The Grant Funds are 

not subject to the Community Development Block Grants regulations at 24 CFR part 570 or Title 

I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

 

E. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs incidental to the generation of program 

income may be deducted from gross income to determine program income, provided these costs 

have not been charged to the grant.  As authorized under 2 CFR 200.307(e)(2), program income 

may be treated as an addition to the Federal award, provided that the Grantee uses that income 

for allowable costs under this Grant Agreement. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs 

incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to determine 

program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the grant.  Any program income 

that cannot be expended on allowable costs under this Grant Agreement must be paid to HUD 

before closeout of the grant, unless otherwise specified by an applicable Federal statute. 

Page 2
Page 173 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

F.  The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that 

meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The Grantee’s 

indirect cost rate information is as provided in Appendix 3 to this Grant Agreement. Unless 

the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education, the Grantee must immediately notify HUD 

upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate during the Period of Performance, so that 

HUD can amend the Grant Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.  Consistent with 2 

CFR Part 200, Appendix III (C.7), if the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education and 

has a negotiated rate in effect on the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD, the 

Grantee may use only that rate for its indirect costs during the Period of Performance.  

 

G. The Grantee must comply with any specific award conditions that HUD may 

attach to this Grant Agreement as provided by 2 CFR 200.208. If applicable, these conditions 

will be listed or added as Appendix 5 to this Grant Agreement.  

 

H. The Grantee is responsible for managing the Project and ensuring the proper use of 

the Grant Funds. The Grantee is also responsible for ensuring the completion of the Project, 

the grant closeout, and compliance with all applicable federal requirements. The Grantee may 

subaward all or a portion of its funds to one or more subrecipients, as identified in the Project 

Narrative (Appendix 1) or as may be approved by HUD in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308. 

All subawards made with funding under this Grant Agreement are subject to the subaward 

requirements under 2 CFR Part 200, including 2 CFR 200.332, and other requirements 

provided by this Grant Agreement. The Grantee is responsible for ensuring each subrecipient 

complies with all requirements under this Grant Agreement, including the general federal 

requirements in Article IV.  A subaward may be made to a for-profit entity only if HUD 

expressly approves that subaward and the for-profit entity is made subject to the same 

Federal requirements that apply to all other subrecipients, including the requirements 2 CFR 

part 200 provides for a “non-Federal entity” that receives a subaward. 

 

ARTICLE IV.  General Federal Requirements 

 

A. If the Grantee is a unit of general local government, a State, an Indian Tribe, or an 

Alaskan Native Village, the Grantee is the Responsible Entity (as defined in 24 CFR part 58) 

and agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review and decision-

making and action, as specified and required in regulations issued by the Secretary pursuant 

to section 305(c) of the Multifamily Housing Property Disposition Reform Act of 1994 and 

published in 24 CFR Part 58. 

 

B. If the Grantee is a housing authority, redevelopment agency, academic institution, 

hospital or other non-profit organization, the Grantee shall request the unit of general local 

government, Indian Tribe or Alaskan Native Village, within which the Project is located and 

which exercises land use responsibility, to act as Responsible Entity and assume all of the 

responsibilities for environmental review and decision-making and action as specified in 

paragraph A above, and the Grantee shall carry out all of the responsibilities of a grantee 

under 24 CFR Part 58.  

 

 

Page 3
Page 174 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

C. After December 29, 2022, neither the Grantee nor any of its contractors, 

subrecipients and other funding and development partners may undertake, or commit or 

expend Grant Funds or local funds for, project activities (other than for planning, 

management, development and administration activities), unless a contract requiring 

those activities was already executed on or before December 29, 2022, until one of the 

following occurs: (i) the Responsible Entity has completed the environmental review 

procedures required by 24 CFR part 58, and HUD has approved the environmental 

certification and given a release of funds; (ii) the Responsible Entity has determined and 

documented in its environmental review record that the activities are exempt under 24 

CFR 58.34 or are categorically excluded and not subject to compliance with 

environmental laws under 24 CFR 58.35(b); or (iii) HUD has performed an 

environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and has notified Grantee in writing of 

environmental approval of the activities. 

 

D. Following completion of the environmental review process, the Grantee 

(recipient) shall exercise oversight, monitoring, and enforcement as necessary to assure 

that decisions and mitigation measures adopted through the environmental review process 

are carried out during project development and implementation. 

 

 E. The Grantee must comply with the generally applicable HUD and CPD 

requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, subpart A, including all applicable fair housing, and civil 

rights requirements. If the Grantee is a Tribe or a Tribally Designated Housing Entity 

(TDHE) as established under 24 CFR 1000.206, the Grantee must comply with the 

nondiscrimination requirements in 24 CFR 1000.12 in lieu of the nondiscrimination 

requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a).   The Grantee must report data on the race, color, 

religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, and family characteristics of persons and 

households who are applicants for, participants in, or beneficiaries or potential 

beneficiaries of the Grantee’s Project, consistent with the instructions and forms provided 

by HUD in order to carry out its responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act, Executive 

Order 11063, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 562 of the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1987 (e.g. HUD-27061).   

 

 F. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from 

time to time. If 2 CFR part 200 is amended to replace or renumber sections of part 200 

that are cited specifically in this Grant Agreement, the part 200 requirements as 

renumbered or replaced by the amendments will govern the obligations of HUD and the 

Grantee after those amendments become effective.   

 

 G. The Grantee must comply with the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 

25 (“System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements”) and the 

Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 (“Reporting Subawards and Executive 

Compensation”), which are hereby incorporated into and made part of this Grant 

Agreement. 

 

 H. If the Total Grant Amount, as provided in Article II of this Grant Agreement, 

is greater than $500,000, the Grantee must comply with the Award Term and Condition 

for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters in Appendix 4 to this Grant Agreement. 

Page 4
Page 175 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

I.  Unless the Grantee is exempt from the Byrd Amendment as explained below, the 

Grantee must comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, 31 U.S.C. 

1352, (the Byrd Amendment) and 24 CFR Part 87, which prohibit recipients of Federal contracts, 

grants, or loans from using appropriated funds for lobbying the executive or legislative branches 

of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 

agreement.  The Grantee must include in its award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers 

(including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements), the requirements for the certification required by Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 87 

and for disclosure using Standard Form- LLL (SF-LLL), “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.”  

In addition, the Grantee must obtain the executed certification required by Appendix A and an 

SF-LLL from all covered persons.  “Person” is as defined by 24 CFR Part 87.   Federally 

recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established by Federally recognized Indian tribes as a result 

of the exercise of the tribe’s sovereign power are excluded from coverage of the Byrd 

Amendment. State-recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established only under state law must 

comply with this requirement. 

 

J. The Grantee must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B of 2 

CFR Part 2429, which adopts the governmentwide implementation (2 CFR Part 182) of sections 

5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D (41 

U.S.C. 701-707).  

 

 K. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) as implemented by regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. The 

URA applies to acquisitions of real property and relocation occurring as a direct result of the 

acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property for Federal or Federally funded 

programs or projects. Real property acquisition that receives Federal financial assistance fo r a 

program or project, as defined in 49 CFR 24.2, must comply with the acquisition requirements 

contained in 49 CFR part 24, subpart B. Unless otherwise specified in law, the relocation 

requirements of the URA and its implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, cover any 

displaced person who moves from real property or moves personal property from real property as 

a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition for a program or project receiving 

HUD financial assistance 

 

L.  If Grant Funds are used for purchase, lease, support services, operation, or work that 

may disturb painted surfaces, of pre-1978 housing, you must comply with the lead-based paint 

evaluation and hazard reduction requirements of HUD's lead- based paint rules (Lead Disclosure; 

and Lead Safe Housing (24 CFR part 35)), and EPA's lead- based paint rules (e.g., Repair, 

Renovation and Painting; Pre-Renovation Education; and Lead Training and Certification (40 

CFR part 745)).  

 

M.  The Grantee must comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 

Act of 1968 (Section 3), 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 75, as 

applicable, including the reporting requirements in 24 CFR 75.25. Grants made to Tribes and 

TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-

Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)). As stated in 24 CFR 75.3(c), 

grants to Tribes and TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in lieu of Section 3.  

Grantees that are not exempt from Section 3 must submit annual reports of Section 3 

Page 5
Page 176 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

accomplishment Performance Measures in DRGR in January of the calendar year.  

This report reflects Section 3 accomplishments for the previous calendar year. 

 

N.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to support any Federal, state, or 

local project that seeks to use the power of eminent domain, unless eminent domain is 

employed only for a public use. Public use includes use of funds for mass transit, 

railroad, airport, seaport, or highway projects, and utility projects which benefit or serve 

the general public (including energy-related, communication-related, water-related, and 

waste water-related infrastructure), other structures designated for use by the general 

public or with other common-carrier or public-utility functions that serve the general 

public and are subject to regulation and oversight by the government, and projects for the 

removal of an immediate threat to public health and safety or brownfields, as defined in 

the Small Business Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Pub. L. 107-

118). Public use does not include economic development that primarily benefits private 

entities. 

 

O.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to maintain or establish a computer 

network that does not block the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of pornography. 

This requirement does not limit the use of funds necessary for any Federal, State, tribal, 

or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal investigations, 

prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 

P.  The Grantee must administer its Grant Funds in accordance with the Conflict 

of Interest requirements set forth in Appendix 6 of this Grant Agreement.  

 

Q. The Grantee must comply with the governmentwide debarment and suspension 

requirements in 2 CFR part 180 as incorporated and supplemented by HUD’s regulations 

at 2 CFR part 2424.   

 

R. The Grantee must comply with the award term and condition regarding 

trafficking in persons in Appendix 7 of this Grant Agreement.  

S. The assurances and certifications the Grantee has made and submitted to HUD 

are incorporated by this reference and made part of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE V. Drawdown Requirements 

 

A. The Grantee may not draw down Grant Funds until HUD has received and 

approved any certifications and disclosures required by 24 CFR 87.100 concerning 

lobbying, if applicable. 

 

 B.  The Grantee must use HUD’s Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) 

system to draw down Grant Funds and report to HUD on activities.   

  

C.  The Grantee must enter activity and budget information in DRGR that is 

consistent with the Grantee’s Project and Approved Budget as described in Article III, 

sections A and B of this Grant Agreement and complies with HUD’s instructions for 

entering information in DRGR found in the document titled “Grant Award Instructions” 

that accompanies the Grant Agreement. 

Page 6
Page 177 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

D.  The Grantee must only enter activities in DRGR that are described in the 

Approved Budget. 

 

E.  The Grantee must expend all Grant Funds in accordance with the activity and 

budget information in DRGR.    

 

F.  Each drawdown of Grant Funds constitutes a representation by the Grantee 

that the funds will be used in accordance with this Grant Agreement.  

 

G.  The Grantee must use DRGR to track the use of program income and must 

report the receipt and use of program income in the reports the Grantee submits to HUD 

under Article VI of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee must expend program income 

before drawing down Grant Funds through DRGR. 

 

H.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this grant agreement, HUD will not be 

responsible for payment of any Grant Funds after the date Treasury closes the account in 

accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1552. Because Treasury may close the account up to one 

week before the September 30 date specified by 31 U.S.C. § 1552, the Grantee is advised 

to make its final request for payment under the grant no later than September 15, 2031. 

 

ARTICLE VI. Program-Specific Reporting Requirements 

 

In addition to the general reporting requirements that apply under other provisions 

of this Agreement, the following program-specific reporting requirements apply to the 

Grantee: 

 

 A.  The Grantee must submit a performance report in DRGR on a semi-annual 

basis and must include a completed Federal financial report as an attachment to each 

performance report in DRGR.  Performance reports shall consist of a narrative of work 

accomplished during the reporting period. During the Period of Performance, the Grantee 

must submit these reports in DRGR no later than 30 calendar days after the end of the 6-

month reporting period.  The first of these reporting periods begins on the first of January 

or June (whichever occurs first) after the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD. 

 

 B.  The performance report must contain the information required for reporting 

program performance under 2 CFR 200.329(c)(2) and (d), including a comparison of 

actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Project as described in Article III, section 

A of this Grant Agreement, the reasons why established goals were not met, if 

appropriate, and additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis 

and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.   

 

 

C.  Financial reports must be submitted using DRGR or such future collections 

HUD may require and as approved by OMB and listed on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html). 

 

Page 7
Page 178 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

D. The performance and financial reports will undergo review and approval by 

HUD. If a report submission is insufficient, HUD will reject the report in DRGR and 

identify the corrections the Grantee must make. 

 

 E.  No drawdown of funds will be allowed through DRGR while the Grantee has 

an overdue performance or financial report. 

 

 F. The Grantee must report and account for all property acquired or improved 

with Grant Funds as provided by 2 CFR part 200 using the applicable common forms 

approved by OMB and provided on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html).  This 

reporting obligation includes submitting status reports on real property at least annually 

as provided by 2 CFR 200.330, accounting for real and personal property acquired or 

improved with Grant Funds as part of Project Closeout, and promptly submitting requests 

for disposition instructions as provided by 2 CFR 200.311(c), 200.313(e), and 

200.314(a).  

 

ARTICLE VII. Project Closeout 

 

 A. The grant will be closed out in accordance with 2 CFR part 200, as may be 

amended from time to time, except as otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement.  

 

 B. The Grantee must submit to HUD a written request to closeout the grant no 

later than 30 calendar days after the Grantee has drawn down all Grant Funds and 

completed the Project as described in Article III, section A of this Grant Agreement. 

HUD will then send the Closeout Agreement and Closeout Certification to the Grantee.  

 

 C. At HUD's option, the Grantee may delay initiation of project closeout until the 

resolution of any findings as a result of the review of semi-annual activity reports in 

DRGR. If HUD exercises this option, the Grantee must promptly resolve the findings. 

 

 D. The Grantee recognizes that the closeout process may entail a review by HUD 

to determine compliance with the Grant Agreement by the Grantee and all participating 

parties. The Grantee agrees to cooperate with any HUD review, including reasonable 

requests for on-site inspection of property acquired or improved with Grant Funds.  

 

 E.  No later than 120 calendar days after the Period of Performance, Grantees 

shall provide to HUD the following documentation: 

 

1. A Certification of Project Completion. 

 

2. A Grant Closeout Agreement. 

 

3. A final financial report giving the amount and types of project costs  

charged to the grant (that meet the allowability and allocability 

 

Page 8
Page 179 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

requirements of 2 CFR part 200, subpart E); a certification of 

the costs; and the amounts and sources of other project funds. 

 

4. A final performance report providing a comparison of actual 

accomplishments with the objectives of the Project, the reasons for slippage 

if established objectives were not met and additional pertinent 

information including explanation of significant cost overruns. 

 

5.          A final property report, if specifically requested by HUD at the time of closeout.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. Default 

 

A default under this Grant Agreement shall consist of any use of Grant Funds for a purpose other 

than as authorized by this Grant Agreement, any noncompliance with statutory, regulatory, or 

other requirements applicable to the Grant Funds, any other material breach of this Grant 

Agreement, or any material misrepresentation in the Grantee’s submissions to HUD in 

anticipation of this award. If the Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the 

Grant Agreement, HUD may adjust specific conditions of this Grant Agreement as described in 2 

CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  If HUD determines that noncompliance 

cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, HUD may take one or more of the 

remedies for noncompliance described in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  

HUD may also terminate all or a part of this award as provided by 2 CFR 200.340 and other 

applicable provisions of 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  Nothing in this 

Grant Agreement shall be construed as creating or justifying any claim against the Federal 

government or the Grantee by any third party. 

Page 9
Page 180 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

ARTICLE IX.  HUD Contact Information 

 

 Except where this Grant Agreement specifically states otherwise, all requests, submissions, 

and reports the Grantee is required to make to HUD under this Grant Agreement must be made 

in writing via email to CPFGrants@hud.gov.  

 

This agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the Grantee and HUD as follows: 

 

GRANTEE 

 

______________________________________________________ 

 

(Name of Organization) 

 

 

BY:  _________________________________________________ 

              (Signature of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Typed Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

 

 

 

HUD 

 

BY:   _________________________________________________ 

             Robin J. Keegan,  

                  Deputy Assistant Secretary for Economic Development 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

Page 10
Page 181 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 1 – Project Narrative  

 

Page 11
Page 182 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 2 – Approved Budget 

Page 12
Page 183 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 3 – Grantee’s Indirect Cost Rate Information 

 

Subject to the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including its appendices), 

the Grantee will use an indirect cost rate as represented by the Grantee below:    

  
The Grantee will not use an indirect cost rate to charge its indirect costs to the 

grant.  

  
The Grantee will use the indirect cost rate(s) identified in the table below to 

charge its indirect costs to the grant. 

 

Agency/Dept./Major Function Indirect cost rate      Direct Cost Base 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

 

[PLEASE NOTE: The grantee must check one of the two boxes above. If the second box is 

checked, the corresponding table must be filled out as described below.  

 

The table must include each indirect cost rate that will be used to calculate the Grantee’s 

indirect costs under the grant.  The table must also specify the type of direct cost base to 

which each included rate applies (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).   Do 

not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients.  

 

For government entities, enter each agency or department that will carry out activities 

under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency (including if the 

de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR 200.414), and the type of direct cost base to which the 

rate will be applied.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs or 

elects to use the de minimis rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs in accordance with 

2 CFR 200.414, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost base in the 

first row of the table.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major 

function of the organization for which a rate was developed and will be used under the 

grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct cost 

base to which the rate will be applied.] 

 

Page 13
Page 184 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 4 – 

Award Term and Condition for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters 

 

Reporting of Matters Related to Grantee Integrity and Performance 

 

1. General Reporting Requirement 

If the total value of the Grantee’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and 

procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of 

time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then during that period of time the 

Grantee must maintain the currency of information reported to the System for Award 

Management (SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and performance system 

(currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)) about 

civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 

condition. This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 

(41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 

the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 

performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 

 

2. Proceedings About Which Grantee Must Report 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must submit the information required about each 

proceeding that: 

 

a. Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative agreement, or 

procurement contract from the Federal Government; 

 

b. Reached its final disposition during the most recent five-year period; and 

 

c. Is one of the following: 

 

(1) A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in paragraph 5 of this 

award term and condition; 

 

(2) A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and payment of a 

monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or damages of $5,000 or more;  

 

(3) An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this award term and 

condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and the Grantee’s payment of 

either a monetary fine or penalty of $5,000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or 

damages in excess of $100,000; or 

 

(4) Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if:  

 

(i) It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2.c.(1), (2), or (3) of 

this award term and condition; 

 

Page 14
Page 185 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

(ii) It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise with an 

acknowledgment of fault on the Grantee’s part; and 

 

(iii) The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose information 

about the proceeding does not conflict with applicable laws and regulations.  

 

3. Reporting Procedures 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must enter in the SAM Entity Management area the 

information that SAM requires about each proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award 

term and condition. The Grantee does not need to submit the information a second time under 

assistance awards that the Grantee received if the Grantee already provided the information 

through SAM because the Grantee was required to do so under Federal procurement contracts 

that the Grantee was awarded. 

 

4. Reporting Frequency 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must report proceedings information through SAM for the 

most recent five-year period, either to report new information about any proceeding(s) that the 

Grantee has not reported previously or affirm that there is no new information to report.  If the 

Grantee has Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a cumulative total 

value greater than $10,000,000, the Grantee must disclose semiannually any information about 

the criminal, civil, and administrative proceedings. 

 

5. Definitions 

For purposes of this award term and condition: 

 

a. Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is adjudicatory in nature in order 

to make a determination of fault or liability (e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission 

Administrative proceedings, Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed 

Services Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the Federal and 

State level but only in connection with performance of a Federal contract or grant. It does not 

include audits, site visits, corrective plans, or inspection of deliverables. 

 

b. Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a judgment or conviction of 

a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or a 

plea, and includes a conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere. 

 

c. Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts 

includes— 

 

(1) Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a cost share or 

match requirement; and 

 

(2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award and options, even 

if not yet exercised.  

Page 15
Page 186 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 5 – Specific Award Conditions 

NONE.  

 

Page 16
Page 187 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 6 – Conflict of Interest Requirements 

 

1. Conflicts Subject to Procurement Regulations. When procuring property or services, the 

grantee and its subrecipients shall comply with the applicable conflict-of-interest rules in 2 CFR 

200.317 and 2 CFR 200.318(c). In all cases not governed by 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 CFR 

200.318(c), the Grantee and its subrecipients must follow the requirements contained in 

paragraphs 2-5 below. 

 

2. General prohibition. No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or 

appointed official of the Grantee or subrecipient and who exercises or has exercised any 

functions or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to  

participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, 

may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have a financial interest in any 

contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for 

himself or herself or for those with whom he or she has immediate family or business ties, during 

his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. Immediate family ties include (whether by blood, 

marriage or adoption) the spouse, parent (including a stepparent), child (including a stepchild), 

sibling (including a stepsibling), grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a covered person. 

 

3. Exceptions. HUD may grant an exception to the general prohibition in paragraph (ii) upon the 

Grantee’s written request and satisfaction of the threshold requirements in paragraph (iv), if 

HUD determines the exception will further the Federal purpose of the award and the effective 

and efficient administration of the Grantee’s Project, taking into account the cumulative effects 

of the factors in paragraph (v).  

 

4. Threshold requirements for exceptions. HUD will consider an exception only after the Grantee 

has provided the following documentation:  

 

a. A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has 

been public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how that disclosure was made; 

and  

 

b. An opinion of the Grantee's attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought 

would not violate state or local law.  

 

5. Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception 

after the Grantee has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements in paragraph (iii), HUD will 

consider the cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable:  

 

a. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree 

of expertise to the program or project that would otherwise not be available;  

 

b. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;  

 

c. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low- or moderate-

income persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception 

Page 17
Page 188 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

will permit such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made 

available or provided to the group or class; 

 

d. Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, 

or the decision-making process regarding the assisted activity in question;  

 

e. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a posit ion as 

described in paragraph (ii);  

 

f. Whether undue hardship will result either to the Grantee or the person affected when 

weighed against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and  

 

g. Any other relevant considerations.  

 

6.  Disclosure of potential conflicts of interest. The Grantee must disclose in writing to HUD any 

potential conflict of interest. 

 

Page 18
Page 189 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

APPENDIX 7 – Award Term and Condition Regarding Trafficking in Persons 

 

The following award term and condition, which is required by 2 CFR part 175, applies as 

written:  

 

a. Provisions applicable to a grantee that is a private entity.   

 

1.You as the grantee, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and 

subrecipients' employees may not—   

 

i. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of 

time that the award is in effect;   

 

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is 

in effect; or   

 

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under 

the award.   

 

2.We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, 

without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity:  

 

i. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or   

 

ii. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized 

to terminate the award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either—   

 

A. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

B. Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the 

conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB 

Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 

implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

b. Provision applicable to a grantee other than a private entity.  

We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without 

penalty, if a subrecipient that is a private entity—   

 

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or  

 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 

terminate the award to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either: 

Page 19
Page 190 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

i. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing 

the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 

180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and 

Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

c. Provisions applicable to any grantee.  

 

1. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source 

alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term.   

 

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of this 

section:   

 

i. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 

(TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), and   

 

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to us 

under this award.   

 

3. You must include the requirements of paragraph a.1 of this award term in any 

subaward you make to a private entity.   

 

d. Definitions. For purposes of this award term:   

 

1.“Employee” means either:   

 

i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the 

performance of the project or program under this award; or   

 

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under 

this award and not compensated by you including, but not limited to, a volunteer 

or individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind 

contribution toward cost sharing or matching requirements.   

 

2. “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the 

recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or 

services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to 

involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery. 

Page 20
Page 191 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0458

3. “Private entity”:   

 

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or 

foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR 175.25.   

 

ii. Includes:   

 

A. A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institution of 

higher education, hospital, or tribal organization other than one 

included in the definition of Indian tribe at 2 CFR 175.25(b).   

 

B. A for-profit organization.   

 

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” 

have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. 

7102). 

 

Page 21
Page 192 of 264



GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

FY 2023  COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

         This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 

City of Pooler (the Grantee) is made pursuant to the authority of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 

2023 (Public Law 117-328) and the Explanatory Statement for Division L of that Act, which was 

printed in the Senate section of the Congressional Record on December 20, 2022 (Explanatory 

Statement).

         In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations under this 

Grant Agreement, HUD and the Grantee agree as follows:

         Subject to the provisions of the Grant Agreement, HUD will make grant funds in the amount        

of $2,000,000 available to the Grantee.  

ARTICLE II. Total Grant Amount 

100 SW Highway 80 Pooler Pooler, GA 31322

B-23-CP-GA-0459

14.251 Economic Development Initiative,

Community Project Funding, and Miscellaneous Grants

Date of grant obligation

August 31, 2031

Grantee Name: City of Pooler

Grantee Address:

Grantee's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI):

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

Assistance Listing Number and Name

Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date

Period of Performance/Budget Period End Date

Grantee's Employer Identification Number (EIN)

ARTICLE I.  Definitions  

 

The definitions at 2 CFR 200.1 apply to this Grant Agreement, except where this Grant 

Agreement specifically states otherwise. 

 

Budget period is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

 

Period of Performance is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

ARTICLE III. Award-Specific Requirements 

 

A.  Federal Award Description. The Grantee must use the Federal funds provided 

under this Grant Agreement (Grant Funds) to carry out the Grantee’s “Project.”  Unless 

changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee’s 

Project shall be as described in the Project Narrative that is approved by HUD as of the 

date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

Project Narrative as Appendix 1 to the Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this 

Grant Agreement.   

 

Page 193 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

   

B.  Approved Budget. The Grantee must use the Grant Funds as provided by the 

Approved Budget.  Unless changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant 

Agreement, the Approved Budget shall be the line-item budget that is approved by HUD as of 

the date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

line-item budget as Appendix 2 to this Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this Grant 

Agreement.  

 

C. Project and Budget Changes. All changes to the Grantee’s Project or Approved Budget 

must be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308 and this Grant Agreement. To request HUD’s 

approval for a change in the Project or Approved Budget, the Grantee must submit a formal letter 

to the Director of HUD’s Office of Economic Development - Congressional Grants Division 

through the assigned Grant Officer.  The letter must be submitted by email to the assigned Grant 

Officer and must provide justification for the change.  The email submitting the letter must also 

include a revised project narrative or revised line-item budget, as applicable, that includes the 

requested change. The Grantee is prohibited from making project or budget changes that would 

conflict with the Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions described in Article III, section D of 

this Grant Agreement.  The assigned Grant Officer for this grant is provided in the Award Letter 

for this grant and found on HUD’s website. The HUD Office of Economic Development – 

Congressional Grants Division will notify the Grantee in writing, by email, whether HUD 

approves or disapproves the change.  Before the Grantee expends Grant Funds in accordance 

with any change approved by HUD or otherwise allowed by 2 CFR 200.308, the Grantee must 

update its grant information in Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) to reflect that 

change. 

 

D.  Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions. The conditions that apply to the Grant 

Funds as provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 and the Explanatory Statement 

are hereby incorporated and made part of this Grant Agreement. In the event of a conflict 

between those conditions, the conditions provided by the Act will govern.  The Grant Funds are 

not subject to the Community Development Block Grants regulations at 24 CFR part 570 or Title 

I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

 

E. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs incidental to the generation of program 

income may be deducted from gross income to determine program income, provided these costs 

have not been charged to the grant.  As authorized under 2 CFR 200.307(e)(2), program income 

may be treated as an addition to the Federal award, provided that the Grantee uses that income 

for allowable costs under this Grant Agreement. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs 

incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to determine 

program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the grant.  Any program income 

that cannot be expended on allowable costs under this Grant Agreement must be paid to HUD 

before closeout of the grant, unless otherwise specified by an applicable Federal statute. 

Page 2
Page 194 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

F.  The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that 

meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The Grantee’s 

indirect cost rate information is as provided in Appendix 3 to this Grant Agreement. Unless 

the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education, the Grantee must immediately notify HUD 

upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate during the Period of Performance, so that 

HUD can amend the Grant Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.  Consistent with 2 

CFR Part 200, Appendix III (C.7), if the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education and 

has a negotiated rate in effect on the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD, the 

Grantee may use only that rate for its indirect costs during the Period of Performance.  

 

G. The Grantee must comply with any specific award conditions that HUD may 

attach to this Grant Agreement as provided by 2 CFR 200.208. If applicable, these conditions 

will be listed or added as Appendix 5 to this Grant Agreement.  

 

H. The Grantee is responsible for managing the Project and ensuring the proper use of 

the Grant Funds. The Grantee is also responsible for ensuring the completion of the Project, 

the grant closeout, and compliance with all applicable federal requirements. The Grantee may 

subaward all or a portion of its funds to one or more subrecipients, as identified in the Project 

Narrative (Appendix 1) or as may be approved by HUD in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308. 

All subawards made with funding under this Grant Agreement are subject to the subaward 

requirements under 2 CFR Part 200, including 2 CFR 200.332, and other requirements 

provided by this Grant Agreement. The Grantee is responsible for ensuring each subrecipient 

complies with all requirements under this Grant Agreement, including the general federal 

requirements in Article IV.  A subaward may be made to a for-profit entity only if HUD 

expressly approves that subaward and the for-profit entity is made subject to the same 

Federal requirements that apply to all other subrecipients, including the requirements 2 CFR 

part 200 provides for a “non-Federal entity” that receives a subaward. 

 

ARTICLE IV.  General Federal Requirements 

 

A. If the Grantee is a unit of general local government, a State, an Indian Tribe, or an 

Alaskan Native Village, the Grantee is the Responsible Entity (as defined in 24 CFR part 58) 

and agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review and decision-

making and action, as specified and required in regulations issued by the Secretary pursuant 

to section 305(c) of the Multifamily Housing Property Disposition Reform Act of 1994 and 

published in 24 CFR Part 58. 

 

B. If the Grantee is a housing authority, redevelopment agency, academic institution, 

hospital or other non-profit organization, the Grantee shall request the unit of general local 

government, Indian Tribe or Alaskan Native Village, within which the Project is located and 

which exercises land use responsibility, to act as Responsible Entity and assume all of the 

responsibilities for environmental review and decision-making and action as specified in 

paragraph A above, and the Grantee shall carry out all of the responsibilities of a grantee 

under 24 CFR Part 58.  

 

 

Page 3
Page 195 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

C. After December 29, 2022, neither the Grantee nor any of its contractors, 

subrecipients and other funding and development partners may undertake, or commit or 

expend Grant Funds or local funds for, project activities (other than for planning, 

management, development and administration activities), unless a contract requiring 

those activities was already executed on or before December 29, 2022, until one of the 

following occurs: (i) the Responsible Entity has completed the environmental review 

procedures required by 24 CFR part 58, and HUD has approved the environmental 

certification and given a release of funds; (ii) the Responsible Entity has determined and 

documented in its environmental review record that the activities are exempt under 24 

CFR 58.34 or are categorically excluded and not subject to compliance with 

environmental laws under 24 CFR 58.35(b); or (iii) HUD has performed an 

environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and has notified Grantee in writing of 

environmental approval of the activities. 

 

D. Following completion of the environmental review process, the Grantee 

(recipient) shall exercise oversight, monitoring, and enforcement as necessary to assure 

that decisions and mitigation measures adopted through the environmental review process 

are carried out during project development and implementation. 

 

 E. The Grantee must comply with the generally applicable HUD and CPD 

requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, subpart A, including all applicable fair housing, and civil 

rights requirements. If the Grantee is a Tribe or a Tribally Designated Housing Entity 

(TDHE) as established under 24 CFR 1000.206, the Grantee must comply with the 

nondiscrimination requirements in 24 CFR 1000.12 in lieu of the nondiscrimination 

requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a).   The Grantee must report data on the race, color, 

religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, and family characteristics of persons and 

households who are applicants for, participants in, or beneficiaries or potential 

beneficiaries of the Grantee’s Project, consistent with the instructions and forms provided 

by HUD in order to carry out its responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act, Executive 

Order 11063, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 562 of the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1987 (e.g. HUD-27061).   

 

 F. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from 

time to time. If 2 CFR part 200 is amended to replace or renumber sections of part 200 

that are cited specifically in this Grant Agreement, the part 200 requirements as 

renumbered or replaced by the amendments will govern the obligations of HUD and the 

Grantee after those amendments become effective.   

 

 G. The Grantee must comply with the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 

25 (“System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements”) and the 

Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 (“Reporting Subawards and Executive 

Compensation”), which are hereby incorporated into and made part of this Grant 

Agreement. 

 

 H. If the Total Grant Amount, as provided in Article II of this Grant Agreement, 

is greater than $500,000, the Grantee must comply with the Award Term and Condition 

for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters in Appendix 4 to this Grant Agreement. 

Page 4
Page 196 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

I.  Unless the Grantee is exempt from the Byrd Amendment as explained below, the 

Grantee must comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, 31 U.S.C. 

1352, (the Byrd Amendment) and 24 CFR Part 87, which prohibit recipients of Federal contracts, 

grants, or loans from using appropriated funds for lobbying the executive or legislative branches 

of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 

agreement.  The Grantee must include in its award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers 

(including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements), the requirements for the certification required by Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 87 

and for disclosure using Standard Form- LLL (SF-LLL), “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.”  

In addition, the Grantee must obtain the executed certification required by Appendix A and an 

SF-LLL from all covered persons.  “Person” is as defined by 24 CFR Part 87.   Federally 

recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established by Federally recognized Indian tribes as a result 

of the exercise of the tribe’s sovereign power are excluded from coverage of the Byrd 

Amendment. State-recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established only under state law must 

comply with this requirement. 

 

J. The Grantee must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B of 2 

CFR Part 2429, which adopts the governmentwide implementation (2 CFR Part 182) of sections 

5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D (41 

U.S.C. 701-707).  

 

 K. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) as implemented by regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. The 

URA applies to acquisitions of real property and relocation occurring as a direct result of the 

acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property for Federal or Federally funded 

programs or projects. Real property acquisition that receives Federal financial assistance fo r a 

program or project, as defined in 49 CFR 24.2, must comply with the acquisition requirements 

contained in 49 CFR part 24, subpart B. Unless otherwise specified in law, the relocation 

requirements of the URA and its implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, cover any 

displaced person who moves from real property or moves personal property from real property as 

a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition for a program or project receiving 

HUD financial assistance 

 

L.  If Grant Funds are used for purchase, lease, support services, operation, or work that 

may disturb painted surfaces, of pre-1978 housing, you must comply with the lead-based paint 

evaluation and hazard reduction requirements of HUD's lead- based paint rules (Lead Disclosure; 

and Lead Safe Housing (24 CFR part 35)), and EPA's lead- based paint rules (e.g., Repair, 

Renovation and Painting; Pre-Renovation Education; and Lead Training and Certification (40 

CFR part 745)).  

 

M.  The Grantee must comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 

Act of 1968 (Section 3), 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 75, as 

applicable, including the reporting requirements in 24 CFR 75.25. Grants made to Tribes and 

TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-

Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)). As stated in 24 CFR 75.3(c), 

grants to Tribes and TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in lieu of Section 3.  

Grantees that are not exempt from Section 3 must submit annual reports of Section 3 

Page 5
Page 197 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

accomplishment Performance Measures in DRGR in January of the calendar year.  

This report reflects Section 3 accomplishments for the previous calendar year. 

 

N.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to support any Federal, state, or 

local project that seeks to use the power of eminent domain, unless eminent domain is 

employed only for a public use. Public use includes use of funds for mass transit, 

railroad, airport, seaport, or highway projects, and utility projects which benefit or serve 

the general public (including energy-related, communication-related, water-related, and 

waste water-related infrastructure), other structures designated for use by the general 

public or with other common-carrier or public-utility functions that serve the general 

public and are subject to regulation and oversight by the government, and projects for the 

removal of an immediate threat to public health and safety or brownfields, as defined in 

the Small Business Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Pub. L. 107-

118). Public use does not include economic development that primarily benefits private 

entities. 

 

O.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to maintain or establish a computer 

network that does not block the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of pornography. 

This requirement does not limit the use of funds necessary for any Federal, State, tribal, 

or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal investigations, 

prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 

P.  The Grantee must administer its Grant Funds in accordance with the Conflict 

of Interest requirements set forth in Appendix 6 of this Grant Agreement.  

 

Q. The Grantee must comply with the governmentwide debarment and suspension 

requirements in 2 CFR part 180 as incorporated and supplemented by HUD’s regulations 

at 2 CFR part 2424.   

 

R. The Grantee must comply with the award term and condition regarding 

trafficking in persons in Appendix 7 of this Grant Agreement.  

S. The assurances and certifications the Grantee has made and submitted to HUD 

are incorporated by this reference and made part of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE V. Drawdown Requirements 

 

A. The Grantee may not draw down Grant Funds until HUD has received and 

approved any certifications and disclosures required by 24 CFR 87.100 concerning 

lobbying, if applicable. 

 

 B.  The Grantee must use HUD’s Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) 

system to draw down Grant Funds and report to HUD on activities.   

  

C.  The Grantee must enter activity and budget information in DRGR that is 

consistent with the Grantee’s Project and Approved Budget as described in Article III, 

sections A and B of this Grant Agreement and complies with HUD’s instructions for 

entering information in DRGR found in the document titled “Grant Award Instructions” 

that accompanies the Grant Agreement. 

Page 6
Page 198 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

D.  The Grantee must only enter activities in DRGR that are described in the 

Approved Budget. 

 

E.  The Grantee must expend all Grant Funds in accordance with the activity and 

budget information in DRGR.    

 

F.  Each drawdown of Grant Funds constitutes a representation by the Grantee 

that the funds will be used in accordance with this Grant Agreement.  

 

G.  The Grantee must use DRGR to track the use of program income and must 

report the receipt and use of program income in the reports the Grantee submits to HUD 

under Article VI of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee must expend program income 

before drawing down Grant Funds through DRGR. 

 

H.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this grant agreement, HUD will not be 

responsible for payment of any Grant Funds after the date Treasury closes the account in 

accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1552. Because Treasury may close the account up to one 

week before the September 30 date specified by 31 U.S.C. § 1552, the Grantee is advised 

to make its final request for payment under the grant no later than September 15, 2031. 

 

ARTICLE VI. Program-Specific Reporting Requirements 

 

In addition to the general reporting requirements that apply under other provisions 

of this Agreement, the following program-specific reporting requirements apply to the 

Grantee: 

 

 A.  The Grantee must submit a performance report in DRGR on a semi-annual 

basis and must include a completed Federal financial report as an attachment to each 

performance report in DRGR.  Performance reports shall consist of a narrative of work 

accomplished during the reporting period. During the Period of Performance, the Grantee 

must submit these reports in DRGR no later than 30 calendar days after the end of the 6-

month reporting period.  The first of these reporting periods begins on the first of January 

or June (whichever occurs first) after the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD. 

 

 B.  The performance report must contain the information required for reporting 

program performance under 2 CFR 200.329(c)(2) and (d), including a comparison of 

actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Project as described in Article III, section 

A of this Grant Agreement, the reasons why established goals were not met, if 

appropriate, and additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis 

and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.   

 

 

C.  Financial reports must be submitted using DRGR or such future collections 

HUD may require and as approved by OMB and listed on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html). 

 

Page 7
Page 199 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

D. The performance and financial reports will undergo review and approval by 

HUD. If a report submission is insufficient, HUD will reject the report in DRGR and 

identify the corrections the Grantee must make. 

 

 E.  No drawdown of funds will be allowed through DRGR while the Grantee has 

an overdue performance or financial report. 

 

 F. The Grantee must report and account for all property acquired or improved 

with Grant Funds as provided by 2 CFR part 200 using the applicable common forms 

approved by OMB and provided on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html).  This 

reporting obligation includes submitting status reports on real property at least annually 

as provided by 2 CFR 200.330, accounting for real and personal property acquired or 

improved with Grant Funds as part of Project Closeout, and promptly submitting requests 

for disposition instructions as provided by 2 CFR 200.311(c), 200.313(e), and 

200.314(a).  

 

ARTICLE VII. Project Closeout 

 

 A. The grant will be closed out in accordance with 2 CFR part 200, as may be 

amended from time to time, except as otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement.  

 

 B. The Grantee must submit to HUD a written request to closeout the grant no 

later than 30 calendar days after the Grantee has drawn down all Grant Funds and 

completed the Project as described in Article III, section A of this Grant Agreement. 

HUD will then send the Closeout Agreement and Closeout Certification to the Grantee.  

 

 C. At HUD's option, the Grantee may delay initiation of project closeout until the 

resolution of any findings as a result of the review of semi-annual activity reports in 

DRGR. If HUD exercises this option, the Grantee must promptly resolve the findings. 

 

 D. The Grantee recognizes that the closeout process may entail a review by HUD 

to determine compliance with the Grant Agreement by the Grantee and all participating 

parties. The Grantee agrees to cooperate with any HUD review, including reasonable 

requests for on-site inspection of property acquired or improved with Grant Funds.  

 

 E.  No later than 120 calendar days after the Period of Performance, Grantees 

shall provide to HUD the following documentation: 

 

1. A Certification of Project Completion. 

 

2. A Grant Closeout Agreement. 

 

3. A final financial report giving the amount and types of project costs  

charged to the grant (that meet the allowability and allocability 

 

Page 8
Page 200 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

requirements of 2 CFR part 200, subpart E); a certification of 

the costs; and the amounts and sources of other project funds. 

 

4. A final performance report providing a comparison of actual 

accomplishments with the objectives of the Project, the reasons for slippage 

if established objectives were not met and additional pertinent 

information including explanation of significant cost overruns. 

 

5.          A final property report, if specifically requested by HUD at the time of closeout.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. Default 

 

A default under this Grant Agreement shall consist of any use of Grant Funds for a purpose other 

than as authorized by this Grant Agreement, any noncompliance with statutory, regulatory, or 

other requirements applicable to the Grant Funds, any other material breach of this Grant 

Agreement, or any material misrepresentation in the Grantee’s submissions to HUD in 

anticipation of this award. If the Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the 

Grant Agreement, HUD may adjust specific conditions of this Grant Agreement as described in 2 

CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  If HUD determines that noncompliance 

cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, HUD may take one or more of the 

remedies for noncompliance described in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  

HUD may also terminate all or a part of this award as provided by 2 CFR 200.340 and other 

applicable provisions of 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  Nothing in this 

Grant Agreement shall be construed as creating or justifying any claim against the Federal 

government or the Grantee by any third party. 

Page 9
Page 201 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

ARTICLE IX.  HUD Contact Information 

 

 Except where this Grant Agreement specifically states otherwise, all requests, submissions, 

and reports the Grantee is required to make to HUD under this Grant Agreement must be made 

in writing via email to CPFGrants@hud.gov.  

 

This agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the Grantee and HUD as follows: 

 

GRANTEE 

 

______________________________________________________ 

 

(Name of Organization) 

 

 

BY:  _________________________________________________ 

              (Signature of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Typed Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

 

 

 

HUD 

 

BY:   _________________________________________________ 

             Robin J. Keegan,  

                  Deputy Assistant Secretary for Economic Development 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

Page 10
Page 202 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 1 – Project Narrative  

 

Page 11
Page 203 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 2 – Approved Budget 

Page 12
Page 204 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 3 – Grantee’s Indirect Cost Rate Information 

 

Subject to the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including its appendices), 

the Grantee will use an indirect cost rate as represented by the Grantee below:    

  
The Grantee will not use an indirect cost rate to charge its indirect costs to the 

grant.  

  
The Grantee will use the indirect cost rate(s) identified in the table below to 

charge its indirect costs to the grant. 

 

Agency/Dept./Major Function Indirect cost rate      Direct Cost Base 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

 

[PLEASE NOTE: The grantee must check one of the two boxes above. If the second box is 

checked, the corresponding table must be filled out as described below.  

 

The table must include each indirect cost rate that will be used to calculate the Grantee’s 

indirect costs under the grant.  The table must also specify the type of direct cost base to 

which each included rate applies (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).   Do 

not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients.  

 

For government entities, enter each agency or department that will carry out activities 

under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency (including if the 

de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR 200.414), and the type of direct cost base to which the 

rate will be applied.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs or 

elects to use the de minimis rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs in accordance with 

2 CFR 200.414, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost base in the 

first row of the table.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major 

function of the organization for which a rate was developed and will be used under the 

grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct cost 

base to which the rate will be applied.] 

 

Page 13
Page 205 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 4 – 

Award Term and Condition for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters 

 

Reporting of Matters Related to Grantee Integrity and Performance 

 

1. General Reporting Requirement 

If the total value of the Grantee’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and 

procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of 

time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then during that period of time the 

Grantee must maintain the currency of information reported to the System for Award 

Management (SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and performance system 

(currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)) about 

civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 

condition. This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 

(41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 

the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 

performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 

 

2. Proceedings About Which Grantee Must Report 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must submit the information required about each 

proceeding that: 

 

a. Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative agreement, or 

procurement contract from the Federal Government; 

 

b. Reached its final disposition during the most recent five-year period; and 

 

c. Is one of the following: 

 

(1) A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in paragraph 5 of this 

award term and condition; 

 

(2) A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and payment of a 

monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or damages of $5,000 or more;  

 

(3) An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this award term and 

condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and the Grantee’s payment of 

either a monetary fine or penalty of $5,000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or 

damages in excess of $100,000; or 

 

(4) Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if:  

 

(i) It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2.c.(1), (2), or (3) of 

this award term and condition; 

 

Page 14
Page 206 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

(ii) It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise with an 

acknowledgment of fault on the Grantee’s part; and 

 

(iii) The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose information 

about the proceeding does not conflict with applicable laws and regulations.  

 

3. Reporting Procedures 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must enter in the SAM Entity Management area the 

information that SAM requires about each proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award 

term and condition. The Grantee does not need to submit the information a second time under 

assistance awards that the Grantee received if the Grantee already provided the information 

through SAM because the Grantee was required to do so under Federal procurement contracts 

that the Grantee was awarded. 

 

4. Reporting Frequency 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must report proceedings information through SAM for the 

most recent five-year period, either to report new information about any proceeding(s) that the 

Grantee has not reported previously or affirm that there is no new information to report.  If the 

Grantee has Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a cumulative total 

value greater than $10,000,000, the Grantee must disclose semiannually any information about 

the criminal, civil, and administrative proceedings. 

 

5. Definitions 

For purposes of this award term and condition: 

 

a. Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is adjudicatory in nature in order 

to make a determination of fault or liability (e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission 

Administrative proceedings, Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed 

Services Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the Federal and 

State level but only in connection with performance of a Federal contract or grant. It does not 

include audits, site visits, corrective plans, or inspection of deliverables. 

 

b. Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a judgment or conviction of 

a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or a 

plea, and includes a conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere. 

 

c. Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts 

includes— 

 

(1) Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a cost share or 

match requirement; and 

 

(2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award and options, even 

if not yet exercised.  

Page 15
Page 207 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 5 – Specific Award Conditions 

NONE.  

 

Page 16
Page 208 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 6 – Conflict of Interest Requirements 

 

1. Conflicts Subject to Procurement Regulations. When procuring property or services, the 

grantee and its subrecipients shall comply with the applicable conflict-of-interest rules in 2 CFR 

200.317 and 2 CFR 200.318(c). In all cases not governed by 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 CFR 

200.318(c), the Grantee and its subrecipients must follow the requirements contained in 

paragraphs 2-5 below. 

 

2. General prohibition. No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or 

appointed official of the Grantee or subrecipient and who exercises or has exercised any 

functions or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to  

participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, 

may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have a financial interest in any 

contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for 

himself or herself or for those with whom he or she has immediate family or business ties, during 

his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. Immediate family ties include (whether by blood, 

marriage or adoption) the spouse, parent (including a stepparent), child (including a stepchild), 

sibling (including a stepsibling), grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a covered person. 

 

3. Exceptions. HUD may grant an exception to the general prohibition in paragraph (ii) upon the 

Grantee’s written request and satisfaction of the threshold requirements in paragraph (iv), if 

HUD determines the exception will further the Federal purpose of the award and the effective 

and efficient administration of the Grantee’s Project, taking into account the cumulative effects 

of the factors in paragraph (v).  

 

4. Threshold requirements for exceptions. HUD will consider an exception only after the Grantee 

has provided the following documentation:  

 

a. A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has 

been public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how that disclosure was made; 

and  

 

b. An opinion of the Grantee's attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought 

would not violate state or local law.  

 

5. Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception 

after the Grantee has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements in paragraph (iii), HUD will 

consider the cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable:  

 

a. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree 

of expertise to the program or project that would otherwise not be available;  

 

b. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;  

 

c. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low- or moderate-

income persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception 

Page 17
Page 209 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

will permit such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made 

available or provided to the group or class; 

 

d. Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, 

or the decision-making process regarding the assisted activity in question;  

 

e. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a posit ion as 

described in paragraph (ii);  

 

f. Whether undue hardship will result either to the Grantee or the person affected when 

weighed against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and  

 

g. Any other relevant considerations.  

 

6.  Disclosure of potential conflicts of interest. The Grantee must disclose in writing to HUD any 

potential conflict of interest. 

 

Page 18
Page 210 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

APPENDIX 7 – Award Term and Condition Regarding Trafficking in Persons 

 

The following award term and condition, which is required by 2 CFR part 175, applies as 

written:  

 

a. Provisions applicable to a grantee that is a private entity.   

 

1.You as the grantee, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and 

subrecipients' employees may not—   

 

i. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of 

time that the award is in effect;   

 

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is 

in effect; or   

 

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under 

the award.   

 

2.We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, 

without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity:  

 

i. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or   

 

ii. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized 

to terminate the award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either—   

 

A. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

B. Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the 

conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB 

Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 

implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

b. Provision applicable to a grantee other than a private entity.  

We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without 

penalty, if a subrecipient that is a private entity—   

 

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or  

 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 

terminate the award to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either: 

Page 19
Page 211 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

i. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing 

the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 

180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and 

Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

c. Provisions applicable to any grantee.  

 

1. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source 

alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term.   

 

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of this 

section:   

 

i. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 

(TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), and   

 

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to us 

under this award.   

 

3. You must include the requirements of paragraph a.1 of this award term in any 

subaward you make to a private entity.   

 

d. Definitions. For purposes of this award term:   

 

1.“Employee” means either:   

 

i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the 

performance of the project or program under this award; or   

 

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under 

this award and not compensated by you including, but not limited to, a volunteer 

or individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind 

contribution toward cost sharing or matching requirements.   

 

2. “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the 

recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or 

services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to 

involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery. 

Page 20
Page 212 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0459

3. “Private entity”:   

 

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or 

foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR 175.25.   

 

ii. Includes:   

 

A. A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institution of 

higher education, hospital, or tribal organization other than one 

included in the definition of Indian tribe at 2 CFR 175.25(b).   

 

B. A for-profit organization.   

 

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” 

have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. 

7102). 

 

Page 21
Page 213 of 264



GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

FY 2023  COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

         This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 

City of Pooler (the Grantee) is made pursuant to the authority of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 

2023 (Public Law 117-328) and the Explanatory Statement for Division L of that Act, which was 

printed in the Senate section of the Congressional Record on December 20, 2022 (Explanatory 

Statement).

         In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations under this 

Grant Agreement, HUD and the Grantee agree as follows:

         Subject to the provisions of the Grant Agreement, HUD will make grant funds in the amount        

of $2,000,000 available to the Grantee.  

ARTICLE II. Total Grant Amount 

100 SW US HW 80 Pooler, GA 31322

B-23-CP-GA-0460

14.251 Economic Development Initiative,

Community Project Funding, and Miscellaneous Grants

Date of grant obligation

August 31, 2031

Grantee Name: City of Pooler

Grantee Address:

Grantee's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI):

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

Assistance Listing Number and Name

Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date

Period of Performance/Budget Period End Date

Grantee's Employer Identification Number (EIN)

ARTICLE I.  Definitions  

 

The definitions at 2 CFR 200.1 apply to this Grant Agreement, except where this Grant 

Agreement specifically states otherwise. 

 

Budget period is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

 

Period of Performance is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

ARTICLE III. Award-Specific Requirements 

 

A.  Federal Award Description. The Grantee must use the Federal funds provided 

under this Grant Agreement (Grant Funds) to carry out the Grantee’s “Project.”  Unless 

changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee’s 

Project shall be as described in the Project Narrative that is approved by HUD as of the 

date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

Project Narrative as Appendix 1 to the Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this 

Grant Agreement.   

 

Page 214 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

   

B.  Approved Budget. The Grantee must use the Grant Funds as provided by the 

Approved Budget.  Unless changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant 

Agreement, the Approved Budget shall be the line-item budget that is approved by HUD as of 

the date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

line-item budget as Appendix 2 to this Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this Grant 

Agreement.  

 

C. Project and Budget Changes. All changes to the Grantee’s Project or Approved Budget 

must be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308 and this Grant Agreement. To request HUD’s 

approval for a change in the Project or Approved Budget, the Grantee must submit a formal letter 

to the Director of HUD’s Office of Economic Development - Congressional Grants Division 

through the assigned Grant Officer.  The letter must be submitted by email to the assigned Grant 

Officer and must provide justification for the change.  The email submitting the letter must also 

include a revised project narrative or revised line-item budget, as applicable, that includes the 

requested change. The Grantee is prohibited from making project or budget changes that would 

conflict with the Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions described in Article III, section D of 

this Grant Agreement.  The assigned Grant Officer for this grant is provided in the Award Letter 

for this grant and found on HUD’s website. The HUD Office of Economic Development – 

Congressional Grants Division will notify the Grantee in writing, by email, whether HUD 

approves or disapproves the change.  Before the Grantee expends Grant Funds in accordance 

with any change approved by HUD or otherwise allowed by 2 CFR 200.308, the Grantee must 

update its grant information in Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) to reflect that 

change. 

 

D.  Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions. The conditions that apply to the Grant 

Funds as provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 and the Explanatory Statement 

are hereby incorporated and made part of this Grant Agreement. In the event of a conflict 

between those conditions, the conditions provided by the Act will govern.  The Grant Funds are 

not subject to the Community Development Block Grants regulations at 24 CFR part 570 or Title 

I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

 

E. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs incidental to the generation of program 

income may be deducted from gross income to determine program income, provided these costs 

have not been charged to the grant.  As authorized under 2 CFR 200.307(e)(2), program income 

may be treated as an addition to the Federal award, provided that the Grantee uses that income 

for allowable costs under this Grant Agreement. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs 

incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to determine 

program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the grant.  Any program income 

that cannot be expended on allowable costs under this Grant Agreement must be paid to HUD 

before closeout of the grant, unless otherwise specified by an applicable Federal statute. 

Page 2
Page 215 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

F.  The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that 

meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The Grantee’s 

indirect cost rate information is as provided in Appendix 3 to this Grant Agreement. Unless 

the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education, the Grantee must immediately notify HUD 

upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate during the Period of Performance, so that 

HUD can amend the Grant Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.  Consistent with 2 

CFR Part 200, Appendix III (C.7), if the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education and 

has a negotiated rate in effect on the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD, the 

Grantee may use only that rate for its indirect costs during the Period of Performance.  

 

G. The Grantee must comply with any specific award conditions that HUD may 

attach to this Grant Agreement as provided by 2 CFR 200.208. If applicable, these conditions 

will be listed or added as Appendix 5 to this Grant Agreement.  

 

H. The Grantee is responsible for managing the Project and ensuring the proper use of 

the Grant Funds. The Grantee is also responsible for ensuring the completion of the Project, 

the grant closeout, and compliance with all applicable federal requirements. The Grantee may 

subaward all or a portion of its funds to one or more subrecipients, as identified in the Project 

Narrative (Appendix 1) or as may be approved by HUD in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308. 

All subawards made with funding under this Grant Agreement are subject to the subaward 

requirements under 2 CFR Part 200, including 2 CFR 200.332, and other requirements 

provided by this Grant Agreement. The Grantee is responsible for ensuring each subrecipient 

complies with all requirements under this Grant Agreement, including the general federal 

requirements in Article IV.  A subaward may be made to a for-profit entity only if HUD 

expressly approves that subaward and the for-profit entity is made subject to the same 

Federal requirements that apply to all other subrecipients, including the requirements 2 CFR 

part 200 provides for a “non-Federal entity” that receives a subaward. 

 

ARTICLE IV.  General Federal Requirements 

 

A. If the Grantee is a unit of general local government, a State, an Indian Tribe, or an 

Alaskan Native Village, the Grantee is the Responsible Entity (as defined in 24 CFR part 58) 

and agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review and decision-

making and action, as specified and required in regulations issued by the Secretary pursuant 

to section 305(c) of the Multifamily Housing Property Disposition Reform Act of 1994 and 

published in 24 CFR Part 58. 

 

B. If the Grantee is a housing authority, redevelopment agency, academic institution, 

hospital or other non-profit organization, the Grantee shall request the unit of general local 

government, Indian Tribe or Alaskan Native Village, within which the Project is located and 

which exercises land use responsibility, to act as Responsible Entity and assume all of the 

responsibilities for environmental review and decision-making and action as specified in 

paragraph A above, and the Grantee shall carry out all of the responsibilities of a grantee 

under 24 CFR Part 58.  

 

 

Page 3
Page 216 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

C. After December 29, 2022, neither the Grantee nor any of its contractors, 

subrecipients and other funding and development partners may undertake, or commit or 

expend Grant Funds or local funds for, project activities (other than for planning, 

management, development and administration activities), unless a contract requiring 

those activities was already executed on or before December 29, 2022, until one of the 

following occurs: (i) the Responsible Entity has completed the environmental review 

procedures required by 24 CFR part 58, and HUD has approved the environmental 

certification and given a release of funds; (ii) the Responsible Entity has determined and 

documented in its environmental review record that the activities are exempt under 24 

CFR 58.34 or are categorically excluded and not subject to compliance with 

environmental laws under 24 CFR 58.35(b); or (iii) HUD has performed an 

environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and has notified Grantee in writing of 

environmental approval of the activities. 

 

D. Following completion of the environmental review process, the Grantee 

(recipient) shall exercise oversight, monitoring, and enforcement as necessary to assure 

that decisions and mitigation measures adopted through the environmental review process 

are carried out during project development and implementation. 

 

 E. The Grantee must comply with the generally applicable HUD and CPD 

requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, subpart A, including all applicable fair housing, and civil 

rights requirements. If the Grantee is a Tribe or a Tribally Designated Housing Entity 

(TDHE) as established under 24 CFR 1000.206, the Grantee must comply with the 

nondiscrimination requirements in 24 CFR 1000.12 in lieu of the nondiscrimination 

requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a).   The Grantee must report data on the race, color, 

religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, and family characteristics of persons and 

households who are applicants for, participants in, or beneficiaries or potential 

beneficiaries of the Grantee’s Project, consistent with the instructions and forms provided 

by HUD in order to carry out its responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act, Executive 

Order 11063, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 562 of the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1987 (e.g. HUD-27061).   

 

 F. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from 

time to time. If 2 CFR part 200 is amended to replace or renumber sections of part 200 

that are cited specifically in this Grant Agreement, the part 200 requirements as 

renumbered or replaced by the amendments will govern the obligations of HUD and the 

Grantee after those amendments become effective.   

 

 G. The Grantee must comply with the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 

25 (“System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements”) and the 

Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 (“Reporting Subawards and Executive 

Compensation”), which are hereby incorporated into and made part of this Grant 

Agreement. 

 

 H. If the Total Grant Amount, as provided in Article II of this Grant Agreement, 

is greater than $500,000, the Grantee must comply with the Award Term and Condition 

for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters in Appendix 4 to this Grant Agreement. 

Page 4
Page 217 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

I.  Unless the Grantee is exempt from the Byrd Amendment as explained below, the 

Grantee must comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, 31 U.S.C. 

1352, (the Byrd Amendment) and 24 CFR Part 87, which prohibit recipients of Federal contracts, 

grants, or loans from using appropriated funds for lobbying the executive or legislative branches 

of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 

agreement.  The Grantee must include in its award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers 

(including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements), the requirements for the certification required by Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 87 

and for disclosure using Standard Form- LLL (SF-LLL), “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.”  

In addition, the Grantee must obtain the executed certification required by Appendix A and an 

SF-LLL from all covered persons.  “Person” is as defined by 24 CFR Part 87.   Federally 

recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established by Federally recognized Indian tribes as a result 

of the exercise of the tribe’s sovereign power are excluded from coverage of the Byrd 

Amendment. State-recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established only under state law must 

comply with this requirement. 

 

J. The Grantee must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B of 2 

CFR Part 2429, which adopts the governmentwide implementation (2 CFR Part 182) of sections 

5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D (41 

U.S.C. 701-707).  

 

 K. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) as implemented by regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. The 

URA applies to acquisitions of real property and relocation occurring as a direct result of the 

acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property for Federal or Federally funded 

programs or projects. Real property acquisition that receives Federal financial assistance fo r a 

program or project, as defined in 49 CFR 24.2, must comply with the acquisition requirements 

contained in 49 CFR part 24, subpart B. Unless otherwise specified in law, the relocation 

requirements of the URA and its implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, cover any 

displaced person who moves from real property or moves personal property from real property as 

a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition for a program or project receiving 

HUD financial assistance 

 

L.  If Grant Funds are used for purchase, lease, support services, operation, or work that 

may disturb painted surfaces, of pre-1978 housing, you must comply with the lead-based paint 

evaluation and hazard reduction requirements of HUD's lead- based paint rules (Lead Disclosure; 

and Lead Safe Housing (24 CFR part 35)), and EPA's lead- based paint rules (e.g., Repair, 

Renovation and Painting; Pre-Renovation Education; and Lead Training and Certification (40 

CFR part 745)).  

 

M.  The Grantee must comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 

Act of 1968 (Section 3), 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 75, as 

applicable, including the reporting requirements in 24 CFR 75.25. Grants made to Tribes and 

TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-

Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)). As stated in 24 CFR 75.3(c), 

grants to Tribes and TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in lieu of Section 3.  

Grantees that are not exempt from Section 3 must submit annual reports of Section 3 

Page 5
Page 218 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

accomplishment Performance Measures in DRGR in January of the calendar year.  

This report reflects Section 3 accomplishments for the previous calendar year. 

 

N.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to support any Federal, state, or 

local project that seeks to use the power of eminent domain, unless eminent domain is 

employed only for a public use. Public use includes use of funds for mass transit, 

railroad, airport, seaport, or highway projects, and utility projects which benefit or serve 

the general public (including energy-related, communication-related, water-related, and 

waste water-related infrastructure), other structures designated for use by the general 

public or with other common-carrier or public-utility functions that serve the general 

public and are subject to regulation and oversight by the government, and projects for the 

removal of an immediate threat to public health and safety or brownfields, as defined in 

the Small Business Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Pub. L. 107-

118). Public use does not include economic development that primarily benefits private 

entities. 

 

O.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to maintain or establish a computer 

network that does not block the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of pornography. 

This requirement does not limit the use of funds necessary for any Federal, State, tribal, 

or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal investigations, 

prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 

P.  The Grantee must administer its Grant Funds in accordance with the Conflict 

of Interest requirements set forth in Appendix 6 of this Grant Agreement.  

 

Q. The Grantee must comply with the governmentwide debarment and suspension 

requirements in 2 CFR part 180 as incorporated and supplemented by HUD’s regulations 

at 2 CFR part 2424.   

 

R. The Grantee must comply with the award term and condition regarding 

trafficking in persons in Appendix 7 of this Grant Agreement.  

S. The assurances and certifications the Grantee has made and submitted to HUD 

are incorporated by this reference and made part of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE V. Drawdown Requirements 

 

A. The Grantee may not draw down Grant Funds until HUD has received and 

approved any certifications and disclosures required by 24 CFR 87.100 concerning 

lobbying, if applicable. 

 

 B.  The Grantee must use HUD’s Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) 

system to draw down Grant Funds and report to HUD on activities.   

  

C.  The Grantee must enter activity and budget information in DRGR that is 

consistent with the Grantee’s Project and Approved Budget as described in Article III, 

sections A and B of this Grant Agreement and complies with HUD’s instructions for 

entering information in DRGR found in the document titled “Grant Award Instructions” 

that accompanies the Grant Agreement. 

Page 6
Page 219 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

D.  The Grantee must only enter activities in DRGR that are described in the 

Approved Budget. 

 

E.  The Grantee must expend all Grant Funds in accordance with the activity and 

budget information in DRGR.    

 

F.  Each drawdown of Grant Funds constitutes a representation by the Grantee 

that the funds will be used in accordance with this Grant Agreement.  

 

G.  The Grantee must use DRGR to track the use of program income and must 

report the receipt and use of program income in the reports the Grantee submits to HUD 

under Article VI of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee must expend program income 

before drawing down Grant Funds through DRGR. 

 

H.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this grant agreement, HUD will not be 

responsible for payment of any Grant Funds after the date Treasury closes the account in 

accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1552. Because Treasury may close the account up to one 

week before the September 30 date specified by 31 U.S.C. § 1552, the Grantee is advised 

to make its final request for payment under the grant no later than September 15, 2031. 

 

ARTICLE VI. Program-Specific Reporting Requirements 

 

In addition to the general reporting requirements that apply under other provisions 

of this Agreement, the following program-specific reporting requirements apply to the 

Grantee: 

 

 A.  The Grantee must submit a performance report in DRGR on a semi-annual 

basis and must include a completed Federal financial report as an attachment to each 

performance report in DRGR.  Performance reports shall consist of a narrative of work 

accomplished during the reporting period. During the Period of Performance, the Grantee 

must submit these reports in DRGR no later than 30 calendar days after the end of the 6-

month reporting period.  The first of these reporting periods begins on the first of January 

or June (whichever occurs first) after the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD. 

 

 B.  The performance report must contain the information required for reporting 

program performance under 2 CFR 200.329(c)(2) and (d), including a comparison of 

actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Project as described in Article III, section 

A of this Grant Agreement, the reasons why established goals were not met, if 

appropriate, and additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis 

and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.   

 

 

C.  Financial reports must be submitted using DRGR or such future collections 

HUD may require and as approved by OMB and listed on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html). 

 

Page 7
Page 220 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

D. The performance and financial reports will undergo review and approval by 

HUD. If a report submission is insufficient, HUD will reject the report in DRGR and 

identify the corrections the Grantee must make. 

 

 E.  No drawdown of funds will be allowed through DRGR while the Grantee has 

an overdue performance or financial report. 

 

 F. The Grantee must report and account for all property acquired or improved 

with Grant Funds as provided by 2 CFR part 200 using the applicable common forms 

approved by OMB and provided on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html).  This 

reporting obligation includes submitting status reports on real property at least annually 

as provided by 2 CFR 200.330, accounting for real and personal property acquired or 

improved with Grant Funds as part of Project Closeout, and promptly submitting requests 

for disposition instructions as provided by 2 CFR 200.311(c), 200.313(e), and 

200.314(a).  

 

ARTICLE VII. Project Closeout 

 

 A. The grant will be closed out in accordance with 2 CFR part 200, as may be 

amended from time to time, except as otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement.  

 

 B. The Grantee must submit to HUD a written request to closeout the grant no 

later than 30 calendar days after the Grantee has drawn down all Grant Funds and 

completed the Project as described in Article III, section A of this Grant Agreement. 

HUD will then send the Closeout Agreement and Closeout Certification to the Grantee.  

 

 C. At HUD's option, the Grantee may delay initiation of project closeout until the 

resolution of any findings as a result of the review of semi-annual activity reports in 

DRGR. If HUD exercises this option, the Grantee must promptly resolve the findings. 

 

 D. The Grantee recognizes that the closeout process may entail a review by HUD 

to determine compliance with the Grant Agreement by the Grantee and all participating 

parties. The Grantee agrees to cooperate with any HUD review, including reasonable 

requests for on-site inspection of property acquired or improved with Grant Funds.  

 

 E.  No later than 120 calendar days after the Period of Performance, Grantees 

shall provide to HUD the following documentation: 

 

1. A Certification of Project Completion. 

 

2. A Grant Closeout Agreement. 

 

3. A final financial report giving the amount and types of project costs  

charged to the grant (that meet the allowability and allocability 

 

Page 8
Page 221 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

requirements of 2 CFR part 200, subpart E); a certification of 

the costs; and the amounts and sources of other project funds. 

 

4. A final performance report providing a comparison of actual 

accomplishments with the objectives of the Project, the reasons for slippage 

if established objectives were not met and additional pertinent 

information including explanation of significant cost overruns. 

 

5.          A final property report, if specifically requested by HUD at the time of closeout.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. Default 

 

A default under this Grant Agreement shall consist of any use of Grant Funds for a purpose other 

than as authorized by this Grant Agreement, any noncompliance with statutory, regulatory, or 

other requirements applicable to the Grant Funds, any other material breach of this Grant 

Agreement, or any material misrepresentation in the Grantee’s submissions to HUD in 

anticipation of this award. If the Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the 

Grant Agreement, HUD may adjust specific conditions of this Grant Agreement as described in 2 

CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  If HUD determines that noncompliance 

cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, HUD may take one or more of the 

remedies for noncompliance described in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  

HUD may also terminate all or a part of this award as provided by 2 CFR 200.340 and other 

applicable provisions of 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  Nothing in this 

Grant Agreement shall be construed as creating or justifying any claim against the Federal 

government or the Grantee by any third party. 

Page 9
Page 222 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

ARTICLE IX.  HUD Contact Information 

 

 Except where this Grant Agreement specifically states otherwise, all requests, submissions, 

and reports the Grantee is required to make to HUD under this Grant Agreement must be made 

in writing via email to CPFGrants@hud.gov.  

 

This agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the Grantee and HUD as follows: 

 

GRANTEE 

 

______________________________________________________ 

 

(Name of Organization) 

 

 

BY:  _________________________________________________ 

              (Signature of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Typed Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

 

 

 

HUD 

 

BY:   _________________________________________________ 

             Robin J. Keegan,  

                  Deputy Assistant Secretary for Economic Development 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

Page 10
Page 223 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 1 – Project Narrative  

 

Page 11
Page 224 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 2 – Approved Budget 

Page 12
Page 225 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 3 – Grantee’s Indirect Cost Rate Information 

 

Subject to the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including its appendices), 

the Grantee will use an indirect cost rate as represented by the Grantee below:    

  
The Grantee will not use an indirect cost rate to charge its indirect costs to the 

grant.  

  
The Grantee will use the indirect cost rate(s) identified in the table below to 

charge its indirect costs to the grant. 

 

Agency/Dept./Major Function Indirect cost rate      Direct Cost Base 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

 

[PLEASE NOTE: The grantee must check one of the two boxes above. If the second box is 

checked, the corresponding table must be filled out as described below.  

 

The table must include each indirect cost rate that will be used to calculate the Grantee’s 

indirect costs under the grant.  The table must also specify the type of direct cost base to 

which each included rate applies (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).   Do 

not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients.  

 

For government entities, enter each agency or department that will carry out activities 

under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency (including if the 

de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR 200.414), and the type of direct cost base to which the 

rate will be applied.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs or 

elects to use the de minimis rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs in accordance with 

2 CFR 200.414, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost base in the 

first row of the table.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major 

function of the organization for which a rate was developed and will be used under the 

grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct cost 

base to which the rate will be applied.] 

 

Page 13
Page 226 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 4 – 

Award Term and Condition for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters 

 

Reporting of Matters Related to Grantee Integrity and Performance 

 

1. General Reporting Requirement 

If the total value of the Grantee’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and 

procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of 

time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then during that period of time the 

Grantee must maintain the currency of information reported to the System for Award 

Management (SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and performance system 

(currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)) about 

civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 

condition. This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 

(41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 

the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 

performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 

 

2. Proceedings About Which Grantee Must Report 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must submit the information required about each 

proceeding that: 

 

a. Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative agreement, or 

procurement contract from the Federal Government; 

 

b. Reached its final disposition during the most recent five-year period; and 

 

c. Is one of the following: 

 

(1) A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in paragraph 5 of this 

award term and condition; 

 

(2) A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and payment of a 

monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or damages of $5,000 or more;  

 

(3) An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this award term and 

condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and the Grantee’s payment of 

either a monetary fine or penalty of $5,000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or 

damages in excess of $100,000; or 

 

(4) Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if:  

 

(i) It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2.c.(1), (2), or (3) of 

this award term and condition; 

 

Page 14
Page 227 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

(ii) It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise with an 

acknowledgment of fault on the Grantee’s part; and 

 

(iii) The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose information 

about the proceeding does not conflict with applicable laws and regulations.  

 

3. Reporting Procedures 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must enter in the SAM Entity Management area the 

information that SAM requires about each proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award 

term and condition. The Grantee does not need to submit the information a second time under 

assistance awards that the Grantee received if the Grantee already provided the information 

through SAM because the Grantee was required to do so under Federal procurement contracts 

that the Grantee was awarded. 

 

4. Reporting Frequency 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must report proceedings information through SAM for the 

most recent five-year period, either to report new information about any proceeding(s) that the 

Grantee has not reported previously or affirm that there is no new information to report.  If the 

Grantee has Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a cumulative total 

value greater than $10,000,000, the Grantee must disclose semiannually any information about 

the criminal, civil, and administrative proceedings. 

 

5. Definitions 

For purposes of this award term and condition: 

 

a. Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is adjudicatory in nature in order 

to make a determination of fault or liability (e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission 

Administrative proceedings, Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed 

Services Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the Federal and 

State level but only in connection with performance of a Federal contract or grant. It does not 

include audits, site visits, corrective plans, or inspection of deliverables. 

 

b. Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a judgment or conviction of 

a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or a 

plea, and includes a conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere. 

 

c. Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts 

includes— 

 

(1) Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a cost share or 

match requirement; and 

 

(2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award and options, even 

if not yet exercised.  

Page 15
Page 228 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 5 – Specific Award Conditions 

NONE.  

 

Page 16
Page 229 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 6 – Conflict of Interest Requirements 

 

1. Conflicts Subject to Procurement Regulations. When procuring property or services, the 

grantee and its subrecipients shall comply with the applicable conflict-of-interest rules in 2 CFR 

200.317 and 2 CFR 200.318(c). In all cases not governed by 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 CFR 

200.318(c), the Grantee and its subrecipients must follow the requirements contained in 

paragraphs 2-5 below. 

 

2. General prohibition. No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or 

appointed official of the Grantee or subrecipient and who exercises or has exercised any 

functions or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to  

participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, 

may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have a financial interest in any 

contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for 

himself or herself or for those with whom he or she has immediate family or business ties, during 

his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. Immediate family ties include (whether by blood, 

marriage or adoption) the spouse, parent (including a stepparent), child (including a stepchild), 

sibling (including a stepsibling), grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a covered person. 

 

3. Exceptions. HUD may grant an exception to the general prohibition in paragraph (ii) upon the 

Grantee’s written request and satisfaction of the threshold requirements in paragraph (iv), if 

HUD determines the exception will further the Federal purpose of the award and the effective 

and efficient administration of the Grantee’s Project, taking into account the cumulative effects 

of the factors in paragraph (v).  

 

4. Threshold requirements for exceptions. HUD will consider an exception only after the Grantee 

has provided the following documentation:  

 

a. A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has 

been public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how that disclosure was made; 

and  

 

b. An opinion of the Grantee's attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought 

would not violate state or local law.  

 

5. Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception 

after the Grantee has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements in paragraph (iii), HUD will 

consider the cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable:  

 

a. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree 

of expertise to the program or project that would otherwise not be available;  

 

b. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;  

 

c. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low- or moderate-

income persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception 

Page 17
Page 230 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

will permit such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made 

available or provided to the group or class; 

 

d. Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, 

or the decision-making process regarding the assisted activity in question;  

 

e. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a posit ion as 

described in paragraph (ii);  

 

f. Whether undue hardship will result either to the Grantee or the person affected when 

weighed against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and  

 

g. Any other relevant considerations.  

 

6.  Disclosure of potential conflicts of interest. The Grantee must disclose in writing to HUD any 

potential conflict of interest. 

 

Page 18
Page 231 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

APPENDIX 7 – Award Term and Condition Regarding Trafficking in Persons 

 

The following award term and condition, which is required by 2 CFR part 175, applies as 

written:  

 

a. Provisions applicable to a grantee that is a private entity.   

 

1.You as the grantee, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and 

subrecipients' employees may not—   

 

i. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of 

time that the award is in effect;   

 

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is 

in effect; or   

 

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under 

the award.   

 

2.We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, 

without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity:  

 

i. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or   

 

ii. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized 

to terminate the award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either—   

 

A. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

B. Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the 

conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB 

Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 

implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

b. Provision applicable to a grantee other than a private entity.  

We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without 

penalty, if a subrecipient that is a private entity—   

 

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or  

 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 

terminate the award to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either: 

Page 19
Page 232 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

i. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing 

the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 

180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and 

Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

c. Provisions applicable to any grantee.  

 

1. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source 

alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term.   

 

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of this 

section:   

 

i. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 

(TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), and   

 

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to us 

under this award.   

 

3. You must include the requirements of paragraph a.1 of this award term in any 

subaward you make to a private entity.   

 

d. Definitions. For purposes of this award term:   

 

1.“Employee” means either:   

 

i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the 

performance of the project or program under this award; or   

 

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under 

this award and not compensated by you including, but not limited to, a volunteer 

or individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind 

contribution toward cost sharing or matching requirements.   

 

2. “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the 

recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or 

services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to 

involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery. 

Page 20
Page 233 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0460

3. “Private entity”:   

 

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or 

foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR 175.25.   

 

ii. Includes:   

 

A. A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institution of 

higher education, hospital, or tribal organization other than one 

included in the definition of Indian tribe at 2 CFR 175.25(b).   

 

B. A for-profit organization.   

 

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” 

have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. 

7102). 

 

Page 21
Page 234 of 264



GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

FY 2023  COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

         This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 

City of Pooler (the Grantee) is made pursuant to the authority of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 

2023 (Public Law 117-328) and the Explanatory Statement for Division L of that Act, which was 

printed in the Senate section of the Congressional Record on December 20, 2022 (Explanatory 

Statement).

         In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations under this 

Grant Agreement, HUD and the Grantee agree as follows:

         Subject to the provisions of the Grant Agreement, HUD will make grant funds in the amount        

of $2,000,000 available to the Grantee.  

ARTICLE II. Total Grant Amount 

100 SW Highway 80 Pooler Pooler, GA 31322

B-23-CP-GA-0461

14.251 Economic Development Initiative,

Community Project Funding, and Miscellaneous Grants

Date of grant obligation

August 31, 2031

Grantee Name: City of Pooler

Grantee Address:

Grantee's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI):

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)

Assistance Listing Number and Name

Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date

Period of Performance/Budget Period End Date

Grantee's Employer Identification Number (EIN)

ARTICLE I.  Definitions  

 

The definitions at 2 CFR 200.1 apply to this Grant Agreement, except where this Grant 

Agreement specifically states otherwise. 

 

Budget period is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

 

Period of Performance is defined in 2 CFR 200.1 and begins and ends on the dates specified 

above for the Period of Performance/Budget Period Start Date and Period of 

Performance/Budget Period End Date. 

ARTICLE III. Award-Specific Requirements 

 

A.  Federal Award Description. The Grantee must use the Federal funds provided 

under this Grant Agreement (Grant Funds) to carry out the Grantee’s “Project.”  Unless 

changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee’s 

Project shall be as described in the Project Narrative that is approved by HUD as of the 

date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

Project Narrative as Appendix 1 to the Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this 

Grant Agreement.   

 

Page 235 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

   

B.  Approved Budget. The Grantee must use the Grant Funds as provided by the 

Approved Budget.  Unless changed in accordance with Article III, section C of this Grant 

Agreement, the Approved Budget shall be the line-item budget that is approved by HUD as of 

the date that HUD signs this Grant Agreement.  For reference, HUD will attach this approved 

line-item budget as Appendix 2 to this Grant Agreement on the date that HUD signs this Grant 

Agreement.  

 

C. Project and Budget Changes. All changes to the Grantee’s Project or Approved Budget 

must be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308 and this Grant Agreement. To request HUD’s 

approval for a change in the Project or Approved Budget, the Grantee must submit a formal letter 

to the Director of HUD’s Office of Economic Development - Congressional Grants Division 

through the assigned Grant Officer.  The letter must be submitted by email to the assigned Grant 

Officer and must provide justification for the change.  The email submitting the letter must also 

include a revised project narrative or revised line-item budget, as applicable, that includes the 

requested change. The Grantee is prohibited from making project or budget changes that would 

conflict with the Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions described in Article III, section D of 

this Grant Agreement.  The assigned Grant Officer for this grant is provided in the Award Letter 

for this grant and found on HUD’s website. The HUD Office of Economic Development – 

Congressional Grants Division will notify the Grantee in writing, by email, whether HUD 

approves or disapproves the change.  Before the Grantee expends Grant Funds in accordance 

with any change approved by HUD or otherwise allowed by 2 CFR 200.308, the Grantee must 

update its grant information in Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) to reflect that 

change. 

 

D.  Applicable Appropriations Act Conditions. The conditions that apply to the Grant 

Funds as provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 and the Explanatory Statement 

are hereby incorporated and made part of this Grant Agreement. In the event of a conflict 

between those conditions, the conditions provided by the Act will govern.  The Grant Funds are 

not subject to the Community Development Block Grants regulations at 24 CFR part 570 or Title 

I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

 

E. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs incidental to the generation of program 

income may be deducted from gross income to determine program income, provided these costs 

have not been charged to the grant.  As authorized under 2 CFR 200.307(e)(2), program income 

may be treated as an addition to the Federal award, provided that the Grantee uses that income 

for allowable costs under this Grant Agreement. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.307(b), costs 

incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to determine 

program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the grant.  Any program income 

that cannot be expended on allowable costs under this Grant Agreement must be paid to HUD 

before closeout of the grant, unless otherwise specified by an applicable Federal statute. 

Page 2
Page 236 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

F.  The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that 

meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The Grantee’s 

indirect cost rate information is as provided in Appendix 3 to this Grant Agreement. Unless 

the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education, the Grantee must immediately notify HUD 

upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate during the Period of Performance, so that 

HUD can amend the Grant Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.  Consistent with 2 

CFR Part 200, Appendix III (C.7), if the Grantee is an Institution of Higher Education and 

has a negotiated rate in effect on the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD, the 

Grantee may use only that rate for its indirect costs during the Period of Performance.  

 

G. The Grantee must comply with any specific award conditions that HUD may 

attach to this Grant Agreement as provided by 2 CFR 200.208. If applicable, these conditions 

will be listed or added as Appendix 5 to this Grant Agreement.  

 

H. The Grantee is responsible for managing the Project and ensuring the proper use of 

the Grant Funds. The Grantee is also responsible for ensuring the completion of the Project, 

the grant closeout, and compliance with all applicable federal requirements. The Grantee may 

subaward all or a portion of its funds to one or more subrecipients, as identified in the Project 

Narrative (Appendix 1) or as may be approved by HUD in accordance with 2 CFR 200.308. 

All subawards made with funding under this Grant Agreement are subject to the subaward 

requirements under 2 CFR Part 200, including 2 CFR 200.332, and other requirements 

provided by this Grant Agreement. The Grantee is responsible for ensuring each subrecipient 

complies with all requirements under this Grant Agreement, including the general federal 

requirements in Article IV.  A subaward may be made to a for-profit entity only if HUD 

expressly approves that subaward and the for-profit entity is made subject to the same 

Federal requirements that apply to all other subrecipients, including the requirements 2 CFR 

part 200 provides for a “non-Federal entity” that receives a subaward. 

 

ARTICLE IV.  General Federal Requirements 

 

A. If the Grantee is a unit of general local government, a State, an Indian Tribe, or an 

Alaskan Native Village, the Grantee is the Responsible Entity (as defined in 24 CFR part 58) 

and agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review and decision-

making and action, as specified and required in regulations issued by the Secretary pursuant 

to section 305(c) of the Multifamily Housing Property Disposition Reform Act of 1994 and 

published in 24 CFR Part 58. 

 

B. If the Grantee is a housing authority, redevelopment agency, academic institution, 

hospital or other non-profit organization, the Grantee shall request the unit of general local 

government, Indian Tribe or Alaskan Native Village, within which the Project is located and 

which exercises land use responsibility, to act as Responsible Entity and assume all of the 

responsibilities for environmental review and decision-making and action as specified in 

paragraph A above, and the Grantee shall carry out all of the responsibilities of a grantee 

under 24 CFR Part 58.  

 

 

Page 3
Page 237 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

C. After December 29, 2022, neither the Grantee nor any of its contractors, 

subrecipients and other funding and development partners may undertake, or commit or 

expend Grant Funds or local funds for, project activities (other than for planning, 

management, development and administration activities), unless a contract requiring 

those activities was already executed on or before December 29, 2022, until one of the 

following occurs: (i) the Responsible Entity has completed the environmental review 

procedures required by 24 CFR part 58, and HUD has approved the environmental 

certification and given a release of funds; (ii) the Responsible Entity has determined and 

documented in its environmental review record that the activities are exempt under 24 

CFR 58.34 or are categorically excluded and not subject to compliance with 

environmental laws under 24 CFR 58.35(b); or (iii) HUD has performed an 

environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and has notified Grantee in writing of 

environmental approval of the activities. 

 

D. Following completion of the environmental review process, the Grantee 

(recipient) shall exercise oversight, monitoring, and enforcement as necessary to assure 

that decisions and mitigation measures adopted through the environmental review process 

are carried out during project development and implementation. 

 

 E. The Grantee must comply with the generally applicable HUD and CPD 

requirements in 24 CFR Part 5, subpart A, including all applicable fair housing, and civil 

rights requirements. If the Grantee is a Tribe or a Tribally Designated Housing Entity 

(TDHE) as established under 24 CFR 1000.206, the Grantee must comply with the 

nondiscrimination requirements in 24 CFR 1000.12 in lieu of the nondiscrimination 

requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a).   The Grantee must report data on the race, color, 

religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, and family characteristics of persons and 

households who are applicants for, participants in, or beneficiaries or potential 

beneficiaries of the Grantee’s Project, consistent with the instructions and forms provided 

by HUD in order to carry out its responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act, Executive 

Order 11063, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 562 of the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1987 (e.g. HUD-27061).   

 

 F. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from 

time to time. If 2 CFR part 200 is amended to replace or renumber sections of part 200 

that are cited specifically in this Grant Agreement, the part 200 requirements as 

renumbered or replaced by the amendments will govern the obligations of HUD and the 

Grantee after those amendments become effective.   

 

 G. The Grantee must comply with the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 

25 (“System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements”) and the 

Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170 (“Reporting Subawards and Executive 

Compensation”), which are hereby incorporated into and made part of this Grant 

Agreement. 

 

 H. If the Total Grant Amount, as provided in Article II of this Grant Agreement, 

is greater than $500,000, the Grantee must comply with the Award Term and Condition 

for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters in Appendix 4 to this Grant Agreement. 

Page 4
Page 238 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

I.  Unless the Grantee is exempt from the Byrd Amendment as explained below, the 

Grantee must comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, 31 U.S.C. 

1352, (the Byrd Amendment) and 24 CFR Part 87, which prohibit recipients of Federal contracts, 

grants, or loans from using appropriated funds for lobbying the executive or legislative branches 

of the Federal Government in connection with a specific contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 

agreement.  The Grantee must include in its award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers 

(including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 

agreements), the requirements for the certification required by Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 87 

and for disclosure using Standard Form- LLL (SF-LLL), “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.”  

In addition, the Grantee must obtain the executed certification required by Appendix A and an 

SF-LLL from all covered persons.  “Person” is as defined by 24 CFR Part 87.   Federally 

recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established by Federally recognized Indian tribes as a result 

of the exercise of the tribe’s sovereign power are excluded from coverage of the Byrd 

Amendment. State-recognized Indian tribes and TDHEs established only under state law must 

comply with this requirement. 

 

J. The Grantee must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B of 2 

CFR Part 2429, which adopts the governmentwide implementation (2 CFR Part 182) of sections 

5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D (41 

U.S.C. 701-707).  

 

 K. The Grantee must comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) as implemented by regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. The 

URA applies to acquisitions of real property and relocation occurring as a direct result of the 

acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property for Federal or Federally funded 

programs or projects. Real property acquisition that receives Federal financial assistance fo r a 

program or project, as defined in 49 CFR 24.2, must comply with the acquisition requirements 

contained in 49 CFR part 24, subpart B. Unless otherwise specified in law, the relocation 

requirements of the URA and its implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, cover any 

displaced person who moves from real property or moves personal property from real property as 

a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition for a program or project receiving 

HUD financial assistance 

 

L.  If Grant Funds are used for purchase, lease, support services, operation, or work that 

may disturb painted surfaces, of pre-1978 housing, you must comply with the lead-based paint 

evaluation and hazard reduction requirements of HUD's lead- based paint rules (Lead Disclosure; 

and Lead Safe Housing (24 CFR part 35)), and EPA's lead- based paint rules (e.g., Repair, 

Renovation and Painting; Pre-Renovation Education; and Lead Training and Certification (40 

CFR part 745)).  

 

M.  The Grantee must comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 

Act of 1968 (Section 3), 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 75, as 

applicable, including the reporting requirements in 24 CFR 75.25. Grants made to Tribes and 

TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-

Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)). As stated in 24 CFR 75.3(c), 

grants to Tribes and TDHEs are subject to Indian Preference requirements in lieu of Section 3.  

Grantees that are not exempt from Section 3 must submit annual reports of Section 3 

Page 5
Page 239 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

accomplishment Performance Measures in DRGR in January of the calendar year.  

This report reflects Section 3 accomplishments for the previous calendar year. 

 

N.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to support any Federal, state, or 

local project that seeks to use the power of eminent domain, unless eminent domain is 

employed only for a public use. Public use includes use of funds for mass transit, 

railroad, airport, seaport, or highway projects, and utility projects which benefit or serve 

the general public (including energy-related, communication-related, water-related, and 

waste water-related infrastructure), other structures designated for use by the general 

public or with other common-carrier or public-utility functions that serve the general 

public and are subject to regulation and oversight by the government, and projects for the 

removal of an immediate threat to public health and safety or brownfields, as defined in 

the Small Business Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Pub. L. 107-

118). Public use does not include economic development that primarily benefits private 

entities. 

 

O.  The Grantee must not use any Grant Funds to maintain or establish a computer 

network that does not block the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of pornography. 

This requirement does not limit the use of funds necessary for any Federal, State, tribal, 

or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal investigations, 

prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 

P.  The Grantee must administer its Grant Funds in accordance with the Conflict 

of Interest requirements set forth in Appendix 6 of this Grant Agreement.  

 

Q. The Grantee must comply with the governmentwide debarment and suspension 

requirements in 2 CFR part 180 as incorporated and supplemented by HUD’s regulations 

at 2 CFR part 2424.   

 

R. The Grantee must comply with the award term and condition regarding 

trafficking in persons in Appendix 7 of this Grant Agreement.  

S. The assurances and certifications the Grantee has made and submitted to HUD 

are incorporated by this reference and made part of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE V. Drawdown Requirements 

 

A. The Grantee may not draw down Grant Funds until HUD has received and 

approved any certifications and disclosures required by 24 CFR 87.100 concerning 

lobbying, if applicable. 

 

 B.  The Grantee must use HUD’s Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) 

system to draw down Grant Funds and report to HUD on activities.   

  

C.  The Grantee must enter activity and budget information in DRGR that is 

consistent with the Grantee’s Project and Approved Budget as described in Article III, 

sections A and B of this Grant Agreement and complies with HUD’s instructions for 

entering information in DRGR found in the document titled “Grant Award Instructions” 

that accompanies the Grant Agreement. 

Page 6
Page 240 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

D.  The Grantee must only enter activities in DRGR that are described in the 

Approved Budget. 

 

E.  The Grantee must expend all Grant Funds in accordance with the activity and 

budget information in DRGR.    

 

F.  Each drawdown of Grant Funds constitutes a representation by the Grantee 

that the funds will be used in accordance with this Grant Agreement.  

 

G.  The Grantee must use DRGR to track the use of program income and must 

report the receipt and use of program income in the reports the Grantee submits to HUD 

under Article VI of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee must expend program income 

before drawing down Grant Funds through DRGR. 

 

H.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this grant agreement, HUD will not be 

responsible for payment of any Grant Funds after the date Treasury closes the account in 

accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1552. Because Treasury may close the account up to one 

week before the September 30 date specified by 31 U.S.C. § 1552, the Grantee is advised 

to make its final request for payment under the grant no later than September 15, 2031. 

 

ARTICLE VI. Program-Specific Reporting Requirements 

 

In addition to the general reporting requirements that apply under other provisions 

of this Agreement, the following program-specific reporting requirements apply to the 

Grantee: 

 

 A.  The Grantee must submit a performance report in DRGR on a semi-annual 

basis and must include a completed Federal financial report as an attachment to each 

performance report in DRGR.  Performance reports shall consist of a narrative of work 

accomplished during the reporting period. During the Period of Performance, the Grantee 

must submit these reports in DRGR no later than 30 calendar days after the end of the 6-

month reporting period.  The first of these reporting periods begins on the first of January 

or June (whichever occurs first) after the date this Grant Agreement is signed by HUD. 

 

 B.  The performance report must contain the information required for reporting 

program performance under 2 CFR 200.329(c)(2) and (d), including a comparison of 

actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Project as described in Article III, section 

A of this Grant Agreement, the reasons why established goals were not met, if 

appropriate, and additional pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis 

and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.   

 

 

C.  Financial reports must be submitted using DRGR or such future collections 

HUD may require and as approved by OMB and listed on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html). 

 

Page 7
Page 241 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

D. The performance and financial reports will undergo review and approval by 

HUD. If a report submission is insufficient, HUD will reject the report in DRGR and 

identify the corrections the Grantee must make. 

 

 E.  No drawdown of funds will be allowed through DRGR while the Grantee has 

an overdue performance or financial report. 

 

 F. The Grantee must report and account for all property acquired or improved 

with Grant Funds as provided by 2 CFR part 200 using the applicable common forms 

approved by OMB and provided on the Grants.gov website 

(https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/forms/post-award-reporting-forms.html).  This 

reporting obligation includes submitting status reports on real property at least annually 

as provided by 2 CFR 200.330, accounting for real and personal property acquired or 

improved with Grant Funds as part of Project Closeout, and promptly submitting requests 

for disposition instructions as provided by 2 CFR 200.311(c), 200.313(e), and 

200.314(a).  

 

ARTICLE VII. Project Closeout 

 

 A. The grant will be closed out in accordance with 2 CFR part 200, as may be 

amended from time to time, except as otherwise specified in this Grant Agreement.  

 

 B. The Grantee must submit to HUD a written request to closeout the grant no 

later than 30 calendar days after the Grantee has drawn down all Grant Funds and 

completed the Project as described in Article III, section A of this Grant Agreement. 

HUD will then send the Closeout Agreement and Closeout Certification to the Grantee.  

 

 C. At HUD's option, the Grantee may delay initiation of project closeout until the 

resolution of any findings as a result of the review of semi-annual activity reports in 

DRGR. If HUD exercises this option, the Grantee must promptly resolve the findings. 

 

 D. The Grantee recognizes that the closeout process may entail a review by HUD 

to determine compliance with the Grant Agreement by the Grantee and all participating 

parties. The Grantee agrees to cooperate with any HUD review, including reasonable 

requests for on-site inspection of property acquired or improved with Grant Funds.  

 

 E.  No later than 120 calendar days after the Period of Performance, Grantees 

shall provide to HUD the following documentation: 

 

1. A Certification of Project Completion. 

 

2. A Grant Closeout Agreement. 

 

3. A final financial report giving the amount and types of project costs  

charged to the grant (that meet the allowability and allocability 

 

Page 8
Page 242 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

requirements of 2 CFR part 200, subpart E); a certification of 

the costs; and the amounts and sources of other project funds. 

 

4. A final performance report providing a comparison of actual 

accomplishments with the objectives of the Project, the reasons for slippage 

if established objectives were not met and additional pertinent 

information including explanation of significant cost overruns. 

 

5.          A final property report, if specifically requested by HUD at the time of closeout.  

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. Default 

 

A default under this Grant Agreement shall consist of any use of Grant Funds for a purpose other 

than as authorized by this Grant Agreement, any noncompliance with statutory, regulatory, or 

other requirements applicable to the Grant Funds, any other material breach of this Grant 

Agreement, or any material misrepresentation in the Grantee’s submissions to HUD in 

anticipation of this award. If the Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the 

Grant Agreement, HUD may adjust specific conditions of this Grant Agreement as described in 2 

CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  If HUD determines that noncompliance 

cannot be remedied by imposing additional conditions, HUD may take one or more of the 

remedies for noncompliance described in 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  

HUD may also terminate all or a part of this award as provided by 2 CFR 200.340 and other 

applicable provisions of 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.  Nothing in this 

Grant Agreement shall be construed as creating or justifying any claim against the Federal 

government or the Grantee by any third party. 

Page 9
Page 243 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

ARTICLE IX.  HUD Contact Information 

 

 Except where this Grant Agreement specifically states otherwise, all requests, submissions, 

and reports the Grantee is required to make to HUD under this Grant Agreement must be made 

in writing via email to CPFGrants@hud.gov.  

 

This agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the Grantee and HUD as follows: 

 

GRANTEE 

 

______________________________________________________ 

 

(Name of Organization) 

 

 

BY:  _________________________________________________ 

              (Signature of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Typed Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

 

 

 

HUD 

 

BY:   _________________________________________________ 

             Robin J. Keegan,  

                  Deputy Assistant Secretary for Economic Development 

 

         _________________________________________________ 

              (Date) 

 

Page 10
Page 244 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 1 – Project Narrative  

 

Page 11
Page 245 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 2 – Approved Budget 

Page 12
Page 246 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 3 – Grantee’s Indirect Cost Rate Information 

 

Subject to the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including its appendices), 

the Grantee will use an indirect cost rate as represented by the Grantee below:    

  
The Grantee will not use an indirect cost rate to charge its indirect costs to the 

grant.  

  
The Grantee will use the indirect cost rate(s) identified in the table below to 

charge its indirect costs to the grant. 

 

Agency/Dept./Major Function Indirect cost rate      Direct Cost Base 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

_________________________  _____________%      ______________ 

 

[PLEASE NOTE: The grantee must check one of the two boxes above. If the second box is 

checked, the corresponding table must be filled out as described below.  

 

The table must include each indirect cost rate that will be used to calculate the Grantee’s 

indirect costs under the grant.  The table must also specify the type of direct cost base to 

which each included rate applies (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).   Do 

not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients.  

 

For government entities, enter each agency or department that will carry out activities 

under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency (including if the 

de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR 200.414), and the type of direct cost base to which the 

rate will be applied.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs or 

elects to use the de minimis rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Costs in accordance with 

2 CFR 200.414, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost base in the 

first row of the table.   

 

For nonprofit organizations that use the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major 

function of the organization for which a rate was developed and will be used under the 

grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct cost 

base to which the rate will be applied.] 

 

Page 13
Page 247 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 4 – 

Award Term and Condition for Grantee Integrity and Performance Matters 

 

Reporting of Matters Related to Grantee Integrity and Performance 

 

1. General Reporting Requirement 

If the total value of the Grantee’s currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and 

procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of 

time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then during that period of time the 

Grantee must maintain the currency of information reported to the System for Award 

Management (SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and performance system 

(currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)) about 

civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 

condition. This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 

(41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 

the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 

performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 

 

2. Proceedings About Which Grantee Must Report 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must submit the information required about each 

proceeding that: 

 

a. Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative agreement, or 

procurement contract from the Federal Government; 

 

b. Reached its final disposition during the most recent five-year period; and 

 

c. Is one of the following: 

 

(1) A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in paragraph 5 of this 

award term and condition; 

 

(2) A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and payment of a 

monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or damages of $5,000 or more;  

 

(3) An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this award term and 

condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and the Grantee’s payment of 

either a monetary fine or penalty of $5,000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or 

damages in excess of $100,000; or 

 

(4) Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if:  

 

(i) It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2.c.(1), (2), or (3) of 

this award term and condition; 

 

Page 14
Page 248 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

(ii) It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise with an 

acknowledgment of fault on the Grantee’s part; and 

 

(iii) The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose information 

about the proceeding does not conflict with applicable laws and regulations.  

 

3. Reporting Procedures 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must enter in the SAM Entity Management area the 

information that SAM requires about each proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award 

term and condition. The Grantee does not need to submit the information a second time under 

assistance awards that the Grantee received if the Grantee already provided the information 

through SAM because the Grantee was required to do so under Federal procurement contracts 

that the Grantee was awarded. 

 

4. Reporting Frequency 

During any period of time when the Grantee is subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, the Grantee must report proceedings information through SAM for the 

most recent five-year period, either to report new information about any proceeding(s) that the 

Grantee has not reported previously or affirm that there is no new information to report.  If the 

Grantee has Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a cumulative total 

value greater than $10,000,000, the Grantee must disclose semiannually any information about 

the criminal, civil, and administrative proceedings. 

 

5. Definitions 

For purposes of this award term and condition: 

 

a. Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is adjudicatory in nature in order 

to make a determination of fault or liability (e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission 

Administrative proceedings, Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed 

Services Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the Federal and 

State level but only in connection with performance of a Federal contract or grant. It does not 

include audits, site visits, corrective plans, or inspection of deliverables. 

 

b. Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a judgment or conviction of 

a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or a 

plea, and includes a conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere. 

 

c. Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts 

includes— 

 

(1) Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a cost share or 

match requirement; and 

 

(2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award and options, even 

if not yet exercised.  

Page 15
Page 249 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 5 – Specific Award Conditions 

NONE.  

 

Page 16
Page 250 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 6 – Conflict of Interest Requirements 

 

1. Conflicts Subject to Procurement Regulations. When procuring property or services, the 

grantee and its subrecipients shall comply with the applicable conflict-of-interest rules in 2 CFR 

200.317 and 2 CFR 200.318(c). In all cases not governed by 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 CFR 

200.318(c), the Grantee and its subrecipients must follow the requirements contained in 

paragraphs 2-5 below. 

 

2. General prohibition. No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or 

appointed official of the Grantee or subrecipient and who exercises or has exercised any 

functions or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to  

participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, 

may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have a financial interest in any 

contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for 

himself or herself or for those with whom he or she has immediate family or business ties, during 

his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. Immediate family ties include (whether by blood, 

marriage or adoption) the spouse, parent (including a stepparent), child (including a stepchild), 

sibling (including a stepsibling), grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of a covered person. 

 

3. Exceptions. HUD may grant an exception to the general prohibition in paragraph (ii) upon the 

Grantee’s written request and satisfaction of the threshold requirements in paragraph (iv), if 

HUD determines the exception will further the Federal purpose of the award and the effective 

and efficient administration of the Grantee’s Project, taking into account the cumulative effects 

of the factors in paragraph (v).  

 

4. Threshold requirements for exceptions. HUD will consider an exception only after the Grantee 

has provided the following documentation:  

 

a. A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has 

been public disclosure of the conflict and a description of how that disclosure was made; 

and  

 

b. An opinion of the Grantee's attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought 

would not violate state or local law.  

 

5. Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception 

after the Grantee has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements in paragraph (iii), HUD will 

consider the cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable:  

 

a. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree 

of expertise to the program or project that would otherwise not be available;  

 

b. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;  

 

c. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low- or moderate-

income persons intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception 

Page 17
Page 251 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

will permit such person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made 

available or provided to the group or class; 

 

d. Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, 

or the decision-making process regarding the assisted activity in question;  

 

e. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a posit ion as 

described in paragraph (ii);  

 

f. Whether undue hardship will result either to the Grantee or the person affected when 

weighed against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and  

 

g. Any other relevant considerations.  

 

6.  Disclosure of potential conflicts of interest. The Grantee must disclose in writing to HUD any 

potential conflict of interest. 

 

Page 18
Page 252 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

APPENDIX 7 – Award Term and Condition Regarding Trafficking in Persons 

 

The following award term and condition, which is required by 2 CFR part 175, applies as 

written:  

 

a. Provisions applicable to a grantee that is a private entity.   

 

1.You as the grantee, your employees, subrecipients under this award, and 

subrecipients' employees may not—   

 

i. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of 

time that the award is in effect;   

 

ii. Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is 

in effect; or   

 

iii. Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under 

the award.   

 

2.We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, 

without penalty, if you or a subrecipient that is a private entity:  

 

i. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or   

 

ii. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized 

to terminate the award to have violated a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either—   

 

A. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

B. Imputed to you or the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing the 

conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR Part 180, “OMB 

Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as 

implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

b. Provision applicable to a grantee other than a private entity.  

We as the Federal awarding agency may unilaterally terminate this award, without 

penalty, if a subrecipient that is a private entity—   

 

1. Is determined to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this 

award term; or  

 

2. Has an employee who is determined by the agency official authorized to 

terminate the award to have violated an applicable prohibition in paragraph a.1 of 

this award term through conduct that is either: 

Page 19
Page 253 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

i. Associated with performance under this award; or   

 

ii. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and due process for imputing 

the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided in 2 CFR part 

180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and 

Suspension (Nonprocurement),” as implemented by HUD at 2 CFR 2424.   

 

c. Provisions applicable to any grantee.  

 

1. You must inform us immediately of any information you receive from any source 

alleging a violation of a prohibition in paragraph a.1 of this award term.   

 

2. Our right to terminate unilaterally that is described in paragraph a.2 or b of this 

section:   

 

i. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 

(TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104(g)), and   

 

ii. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to us 

under this award.   

 

3. You must include the requirements of paragraph a.1 of this award term in any 

subaward you make to a private entity.   

 

d. Definitions. For purposes of this award term:   

 

1.“Employee” means either:   

 

i. An individual employed by you or a subrecipient who is engaged in the 

performance of the project or program under this award; or   

 

ii. Another person engaged in the performance of the project or program under 

this award and not compensated by you including, but not limited to, a volunteer 

or individual whose services are contributed by a third party as an in-kind 

contribution toward cost sharing or matching requirements.   

 

2. “Forced labor” means labor obtained by any of the following methods: the 

recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or 

services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to 

involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery. 

Page 20
Page 254 of 264



FY 2023 COMMUNITY PROJECT FUNDING

GRANT AGREEMENT NO. B-23-CP-GA-0461

3. “Private entity”:   

 

i. Means any entity other than a State, local government, Indian tribe, or 

foreign public entity, as those terms are defined in 2 CFR 175.25.   

 

ii. Includes:   

 

A. A nonprofit organization, including any nonprofit institution of 

higher education, hospital, or tribal organization other than one 

included in the definition of Indian tribe at 2 CFR 175.25(b).   

 

B. A for-profit organization.   

 

4. “Severe forms of trafficking in persons,” “commercial sex act,” and “coercion” 

have the meanings given at section 103 of the TVPA, as amended (22 U.S.C. 

7102). 

 

Page 21
Page 255 of 264



Background:

• Mr. Gilliard, the licensee, has routinely paid taxes collected on the sale of distilled 
spirits late.

• For the calendar years ending December 31, 2021 and 2022, Mr. Gilliard has timely paid 
taxes for three of the twenty-four months, or 12.5% of the time.

• In May 2022 Mr. Gilliard was summoned to court and ordered to pay all delinquent taxes 
at that time.

• Mr. Gilliard’s routine and frequent late payment of taxes appears to be willful.

Current Noncompliance: 

Mr. Gilliard has not paid mixed drink excise taxes collected in November and December 2022, 
and has not filed the required returns for the same period resulting in noncompliance with 
Chapter 6, Article II, Section 6-35(a) and 6-35(b) of the City Ordinances.

Available Actions to Remedy Noncompliance:

1. Sec. 6-29.2.(a)(1) allows city council the right to deny, suspend or cancel any license under 
Chapter 6 – Alcoholic Beverages if any applicant for a license or any licensee under this 
chapter willfully fails to comply with any provisions of this chapter.

Or

2. At minimum, staff would recommend probation with the following conditions:

a) All currently delinquent taxes are paid by the close of business on March 31, 2023,
b) Payment of currently delinquent taxes and future taxes are to be paid in person and 

not through the city’s drop box,
c) In addition to the return required in Sec. 6-35(b), the licensee is required to include a 

report that sets forth the price charged for each sale and the date of sale as provided 
in Sec. 6-32.(e), and 

d) The first occurrence of noncompliance of any provision of Chapter 6 – Alcoholic 
Beverages or the probation conditions will result in the immediate revocation of the 
licensee’s alcoholic beverage license.

Page 256 of 264



Relevant Sections from Chapter 6 – Alcoholic Beverages of the City Ordinances

Sec. 6-32. - Administration generally.

(a) The city manager or his authorized representative shall administer and enforce the 
provisions of this article for the levy and collection of the tax imposed hereby.

(b) The city manager shall have the authority to make and publish reasonably rules and 
regulations not inconsistent with this article or other laws of the city and the State of 
Georgia, or the Constitution of this state or the United States for administration and 
enforcement of the provisions of this article and the collection of taxes hereunder.

(c) Every licensee for the sale of distilled spirits by the drink in the city shall keep such 
records, receipts, invoices and other pertinent papers in such form as the city manager 
may require.

(d) The city manager or designee may examine the books, papers, records, financial reports, 
equipment and other facilities of any licensee liable for the tax, in order to verify the 
accuracy of any return made, or if no return is made by the licensee, to ascertain and 
determine the amount required to be paid.

(e) In administration of the provisions of this article, the city manager may require the filing 
of reports by any person having in such person's possession or custody information 
relating to the sales of distilled spirits which are subject to the tax. The reports shall be 
filed with the city manager's office when required and shall set forth the price charged 
for each sale, the date of sale and such other information as the city manager may require.

Sec. 6-33. – Imposed; rate.

There is hereby imposed and levied upon every sale of distilled spirits purchased by the drink in 
the city a tax in the amount of three percent of the purchase price of the drink.

Sec. 6-34. - Collection due by licensee.

Every licensee or his agent is hereby authorized and directed to collect the tax imposed by this 
article from the purchasers of distilled spirits by the drink sold within his licensed premises.

Sec. 6-35. - Payment; returns, collection fees; penalties and interest for late payments.

(a) All amounts of such taxes shall be due and payable monthly to the city manager's office 
of the City of Pooler on or before the 20th day of the next succeeding respective monthly 
period.

(b) The remittance of the taxes collected should be on a return which shall include gross 
receipts from the sale of distilled spirits by the drink, amount of tax collected or due for 
the related period, and such information as may be required by the city manager.

Page 257 of 264



1

Mayor
Rebecca Benton  

Council Members
Stevie Wall
Shannon Black
Karen Williams
Aaron Higgins
John Wilcher
Tom Hutcherson

City of Pooler Police Department 
Code Enforcement Division

100 SW US Highway 80, Pooler, GA 31322
(912) 330-8693 

code@pooler-ga.gov

City Manager    
 Robert H. Byrd Jr   

City Attorney     
Steve Scheer

Chief of Police    
 Ashley Brown   

        

February 28, 2023

Mr. Maurice Gilliard
Savannah Chocolate Bar
1 N Godley Station Boulevard, Suite B-100
Pooler, Georgia 31322

Dear Mr. Gilliard,

This letter is to notify you pursuant to Chapter 6, Article II, Sections 6-29(a) and 6-29.2 (a) and (b) that 
the Pooler City Council will conduct a disciplinary hearing on Monday, March 20, 2023 on the second 
floor of City Hall at 100 SW US Highway 80, Pooler, Georgia beginning at 6:00pm during the regular 
City Council meeting. The disciplinary hearing will be for the Savannah Chocolate Bar, a licensed 
business in the City of Pooler, which you own, control, or have an interest in.

Sec. 6-29. - Disciplinary hearings.

(a) Each license issued pursuant to this article is granted as a mere privilege and not a right. 
Upon violation of any provision of this chapter or of any law or regulation of the state 
relating to alcoholic beverages, malt beverages and wine, the council, at a regular or special 
called meeting, after reasonable written notice of the pending violations to the licensee and 
after the licensee has been afforded an opportunity to be heard as to the proposed grounds 
for revocation, may revoke or suspend the license, or in lieu of revocation or suspension 
may impose conditions or probation upon continued operations under the license. When a 
license is revoked or suspended, no portion of the license fee shall be refundable.

Sec. 6-29.2. - Revocation of license.

(a) (1) In addition to any criminal penalty that may be imposed by section 6-28, the city council 
shall have the right to deny, suspend or cancel any license under this chapter if:

a. The license application is not filed in good faith or is filed by some person as a 
subterfuge for any other person.

b. Any applicant for a license or any licensee under this chapter willfully fails to comply 
with any provisions of this chapter.

c. Any person to whom a license has been issued under this chapter is no longer 
engaged in the dealing of alcoholic beverages or no longer qualifies as a licensee 
under this chapter.

Page 258 of 264

mailto:code@pooler-ga.gov


2

(2) Before any denial, suspension or cancellation of a license granted under this chapter, 
the applicant or licensee shall be afforded notice and a hearing as follows:

a. The notice shall be served personally or by certified mail, not less than 20 days 
before the hearing. The notice shall include a:

1. Statement of the time, place and nature of the hearing;

2. Statement of the legal authority under which the hearing is to be held;

3. Reference to the sections of ordinances and statutes involved;

4. Short and plain statement of the matters asserted;

5. Statement as to the right of any party to representation by legal counsel at 
the hearing; the right of any party to present evidence on all issues; and the 
right of any party to subpoena witnesses and documentary evidence.

(b) At the hearing, all parties may be represented by legal counsel, and may respond to and 
present evidence on all issues involved. The city council, as the hearing agency, shall 
have the right to exercise the powers provided in O.C.G.A. § 50-13-13, and to promulgate 
such other rules for the orderly disposition of the hearing as it deems appropriate.

The disciplinary hearing will address willful noncompliance of Chapter 6, Article II, Section 6-35(a) and 
6-35(b) of the City Ordinances which read as follows:

Sec. 6-35. - Payment; returns, collection fees; penalties and interest for late payments.

(a) All amounts of such taxes shall be due and payable monthly to the city manager's office 
of the City of Pooler on or before the 20th day of the next succeeding respective monthly 
period.

(b) The remittance of the taxes collected should be on a return which shall include gross 
receipts from the sale of distilled spirits by the drink, amount of tax collected or due for 
the related period, and such information as may be required by the city manager.

The Savannah Chocolate Bar has not paid mixed drink excise taxes collected in November and December 
2022, and has not filed the required returns reporting no mixed drink excise taxes were collected during 
the same period.

The Savannah Chocolate Bar may be represented by legal counsel and may respond to and present 
evidence on all issues involved.

Respectfully,

Chris Lightle
Chief Finance Officer
City of Pooler, Georgia

Page 259 of 264



2020 Month Date due Date paid Days late Date Email Sent Notes Late fees
Alcoholic Beverage 
Application Apr 1-Apr Applied for Alcohol license-Mayor and Council approved.
Occupational Tax 
Certificate Application Dec 10-Dec Applied for Occupational Tax Certificate-Mayor and Council approved.
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Dec 20-Jan 23-Mar 63 days First month open- Dec 2020.

2021 Month Date due Date paid Days late Date Email Sent Notes Late fees
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Jan 20-Feb 23-Mar 31 days
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Feb 20-Mar 23-Mar 3 days 21-Mar

Email sent reminding customer that liquor by the drink excise taxes are due each month that the business is 
open in Pooler- Customer then paid Dec, Jan and Feb together. 308.30$       

Alcoholic Beverage 
renewal March 31-Mar 27-Jul 118 days Paid alcohol license renewal 4 months past due date. 68.62$         
Occupational Tax 
Certificate renewal March 31-Mar 27-Jul 118 days Paid occupational tax certificate renewal 4 months past due date. 78.30$         
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes March 20-Apr 20-Apr Paid on time
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes April 20-May 22-Jul 63 days 21-Jul

Email sent about April taxes due-response was-"I'm unsure how the payment was missed. I apologize for the 
delay in response." Paid on July 22, 63 days late. 145.09$       

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes May 20-Jun 22-Jun 2 days 150.42$       
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes June 20-Jul 22-Jul 2 days Paid April and June together (missed paying April).
Live Entertainment 
Permit July 22-Jul 22-Jul

Applied for live entertainment permit after several notifications that business must have a permit for the live 
entertainment at the Chocolate Bar. 

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes July 20-Aug 9-Dec 111 days
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Aug 20-Sep 9-Dec 80 days 23-Sep

Email sent about July,  Aug and September taxes due-responded on Oct 25, "I apologize for the delay. I am 
attempting to clear this up with my partners and have an answer by weeks end. Are you able to set up payment 
with the use of an American Express card?"- our answer was that we do not accept American Express- his 
response was "Understood. Let me get with my partners to create a resolution. We are hopeful to have an 
answer by weeks end."

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Sept 20-Oct 9-Dec 50 days

On Nov 18, received an email from Mr. Gilliard requesting our address to send a check for a portion of the past 
due taxes. 

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Oct 20-Nov 9-Dec 19 days 29-Nov

Email sent about past due again-then customer paid July-Oct , (finally received a check but no documents 
supporting taxes, had to email to request for him to send forms). 554.27$       

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Nov 20-Dec 29-Dec 9 days Jan 4 and 6

Email sent about missing form again and owing an additional 40.68 due to filing late, and that late fees were 
not included. 40.68$         

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Dec 20-Jan 7-Jun 169 days 14-Feb

Email reminder about the Dec taxes that are 25 days late and the additional late fee from Nov filling.-no 
response until April 21 "I wanted to reach out to express my apologies for falling behind on our excise taxes. 
Our organization has went through some restructuring over the last few months and neared completion. I am 
going to pull your numbers from January to the current over the weekend and begin a payment plan (if allowed) 
beginning next week to remedy the arrears and become current. Again, it is our sincerest apologies and we 
intend to correct this in a timely manner that works for all involved."  (never received a payment from him until 
his court date). 167.76$       

Total late fees 2021 1,513.44$    

2022 Month Date due Date paid Days late Date Email Sent Notes Late fees

Savannah Chocolate Bar Payment History

Page 260 of 264



Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Jan 20-Feb 3-Jun 103 days 6-Jun

Email sent about missing Dec payment -wanted us to accept a postdated check in June for this payment that 
was due in Jan …we did however allow him to pay with Amex this one time.This was included in the subpoena 
but he claimed he had already paid it when in fact he had not.

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Feb 20-Mar 3-Jun 75 days

Received this email on May 1st from Mr. Gilliard, "I am reaching out as I have received much communication 
regarding excise taxes and business license. I want to first off apologize and take responsibility for infractions 
made myself and my partners on these city requirements. We only wish to ensure we right the ship and become 
aligned with our city. I have calculated the missed excise tax payments (with penalties) for a total of $4775.51. 
My general manager told me that we also did not submit for an updated business license (this certainly passed 
my mind as we are still new to scheduling annual occurrences of licenses). My sincerest apologies with this as 
well. May I have the application for the business license sent over so we may remedy that as well. I appreciate 
you working with our group as we navigate ( and quite frankly stumble a little bit) through these annual 
requirements."

Alcoholic Beverage 
renewal

March 31-Mar 5-May
4/22/22 Subpoena was delivered for non payment of Alcoholic Beverage renewal, Occupational Tax certificate 
renewal and liquor by the drink excise taxes for Dec-March  (paid license renewals on his court date). 787.50$       

Occupational Tax 
Certificate renewal March 31-Mar 5-May 50.03$         
Live Entertainment 
Permit-renewal March 31-Mar never 336 days Has never paid for the renewal of the live entertainment permit but is still providing live entertainment.
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes March 20-Apr 3-Jun 44 days  
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes April 20-May 3-Jun 14 days  526.71$       
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes May 20-Jun 21-Jun 1 day

5/5/22  went to court /paid all on June 3 (Jan -May) claims he did not owe Dec, but he did.  Customer finally 
paid Dec of 2021 on June 7, 2022.

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes June 20-Jul 21-Jul 1 day
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes July 20-Aug 22-Aug paid on time 
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Aug 20-Sep 20-Sep paid on time 
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Sept 20-Oct 9-Dec 50 days 22-Nov

Sent email about missing Sept pmt and Oct late fee (His response about Sept was requesting for us to split the 
payment within two weeks…even though it was now 50 days late). 100.00$       

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Oct 20-Nov Nov 22/Dec 9 19 days 5-Dec

Sent email about Oct check that was returned to us for NSF and a reminder about the Sept payment that we still 
had not received from him- he came in and paid for that on 12/9/22. 135.00$       

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Nov 20-Dec  72 days  As of 3/2/23
Alcoholic Beverage 
renewal

Dec 13-Dec 3-Jan 22 days 28-Dec
Sent email to notify him that his Alcoholic Beverage license was past due and must be paid no later than Dec 
31. 

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Dec 20-Jan  41 days 26-Jan As of 3/2/23- Email reminder sent about missing Nov and Dec 2022 taxes , and that Jan is due on Feb 21.
Alcoholic Beverage 
renewal

Dec 13-Dec 3-Jan 22 days

We spoke over the phone on 12/6/22 and customer was informed that he would need to pay by no later than 
12/13/22 to avoid late fees. On 12/28/22, an email was sent to him informing him that he needed to come in 
asap. However, he was also allowed to put the payment in the drop box by no later than 9 am on Tuesday, 
January 3rd due to holiday closure dates. The drop box was checked at around 9:30 a.m. and no payment was 
received. Lt. Schmitt went out on 1/3/23 and delivered a cease sales order which was delivered after 5 p.m.  A 
check was received in the drop box for the incorrect amount on 1/4/23. Mr. Gilliard called and claimed that he 
did drop it off on 1/3/23 before 9:30 a.m. According to the cameras, Mr. Gilliard dropped off the check at 9:27 
a.m. We granted him the opportunity to come that same day with another check for the correct amount. When 
he arrived at 3:14 p.m. he requested that we give him until Friday, 1/6/23 to pay the Sunday Sales fees. We did 
not grant that request and he canceled his Sunday Sales License effective immediately. 537.50$       

Page 261 of 264



Total late fees 2022 2,136.74$    

2023 Month Date due Date paid Days late Date Email Sent Notes Late fees
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes

Jan 21-Feb 21-Feb paid on time

This month was paid on time however customer did not submit Nov and Dec 2022                                                                          
Lt. Schmitt delivered notice on Feb 28 of City Ordinances that The Savannah Chocolate Bar is in violation of 
and notify of the City Hall Council hearing on March 20 that customer must attend.

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Feb 20-Mar
Occupational Tax 
Certificate renewal March 31-Mar

No payment has been received for customers 2023 business license -has untill March 31 to pay without 
penalties.

Live Entertainment 
Permit-renewal March 31-Mar  

Has never paid for the renewal of the live entertainment permit , unsure if there is still live entertainment at this 
establishment.

Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes March 20-Apr
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes April 20-May
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes May 20-Jun
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes June 20-Jul
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes July 20-Aug
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Aug 20-Sep
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Sept 20-Oct
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Oct 20-Nov
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Nov 20-Dec
Liquor by the Drink 
Excise Taxes Dec 20-Jan

Total late fees 2023 -$             

Total all late fees 3,650.18$    

   

Page 262 of 264


	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 7, 2023
	6A_City Council Meeting_2023-03-07_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of March 7,
	6B_City Council Meeting_2023-03-07_Executive Session Affidavit_executed

	C. Special Event Permit Application for Cavallo Eques
	6C_Special Event Permit Application for Cavallo Equestrian Arts, LLC from March 31, 2023 through April 2, 2023

	D. Special Event Permit Application for the Chamber o
	6D_Special Event Permit Application for the Chamber of Commerce on April 21, 2023 (seeking waiver)

	E. Special Event Permit Application for Robert Carpen
	6E_Special Event Permit Application for Robert Carpenter on May 6, 2023

	F. Special Event Permit Application for The 200 Club 
	6F_Special Event Permit Application for The 200 Club of the Coastal Empire on May 6, 2023 (seeking waiver)

	G. Department Reports
	1. Public Works
	6G1_Public Works

	2. Finance
	6G2_Finance

	3. Fire
	6G3_Fire

	4. Police
	6G4_Police

	5. Recreation
	6G5_Recreation

	6. Planning & Zoning
	6G6_Planning & Zoning



	VII. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Site Plan for Element Hotel at 100 Davol Street
	7A_Site Plan for Element Hotel at 100 Davol Street

	B. Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Performance
	7B_Acceptance of Maintenance and Sidewalk Performance Bond for Clear Lake Reserve Phase 2

	C. Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis Courts Change Ord
	9D_Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis Courts Change Order from Parker Properties

	D. Amendment #1 to the 2023 Roadside Mowing and Gener
	7D_Amendment #1 to the 2023 Roadside Mowing and General Maintenance Contract with The McGraley Compan

	E. 2023 Surplus Property List
	7E_2023 Surplus Property List

	F. Fiscal Year 2023 Community Project Funding Grant A
	9C1_Grant Agreement B-23-CP-GA-0458
	9C2_Grant Agreement B-23-CP-GA-0459
	9C3_Grant Agreement B-23-CP-GA-0460
	9C4_Grant Agreement B-23-CP-GA-0461

	G. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocola
	7F1_Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocolate Bar at 1 N Godley Station Boulevard, Suite B-100
	7F2_Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocolate Bar at 1 N Godley Station Boulevard, Suite B-100
	7G3_Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocolate Bar
	7G4_Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Savannah Chocolate Bar


	VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	IX. ADJOURNMENT

